
  

1 
 

 

 

Commitment, Excellence, Community 

NEWBERG PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

POLICY UPDATE COMMITTEE MEETING AGENDA 

Wednesday October 19, 2022 6:00 p.m. 

ZOOM Link 

WEBINAR ID: 832 3624 1172 WEBINAR PASSCODE: 086548 

1.0 CALL TO ORDER 

2.0 ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 

3.0 REPORTS & DISCUSSION ITEMS 

3.1 Policy Update- 

Review the following policies: 

BBBA – Board Member Qualifications, Optional  

CB – Superintendent, Highly Recommended  

CBC – Superintendent’s Contract, Optional  

CPA - Layoff and Recall for Administrators, Highly Recommended  

DBEA – Budget Committee, Highly Recommended 

EFA – Local Wellness, Required  

GBEA – Workplace Harassment *, Required  

GCBDB/GDBDB – Early Return to Work, Highly Recommended  

IGAC – Religion and Schools, Optional  

IGAI – Human Sexuality, AIDS/HIV, Sexually Transmitted Diseases, Health Education**, Highly 

Recommended  

IGBAF – Special Education – Individualized Education Program (IEP), Required  

IGBB – Talented and Gifted Program and/or Services, Required 

IGBBA – Talented and Gifted Students - Identification, Required  

IGBBC - Talented and Gifted – Programs and Services, Recommend delete in lieu of other revisions  

IGBHE – Expanded Options Program**, Highly Recommended  

IGDJ – Interscholastic Activities**, Required 

IK – Academic Achievement, Required  

IKF – Graduation Requirements**, Required  

IMB – District Improvement Program, Highly Recommended  

JEA – Compulsory Attendance**, Highly Recommended  

JGAB – Use of Restraint or Seclusion**, Required  

JHC – Student Health Services**, Highly Recommended  

KBA – Public Records Request, Highly Recommended  

4.0 FUTURE BOARD MEETINGS 

5.0 ANNOUNCEMENTS/OTHER 

6.0 ADJOURNMENT 

 
LINK to Policy Update Committee Mtg 10.19.2022 To listen to the meeting, call one of these numbers and follow the prompts: 

1-253-215-8782 or 1-301-715-8592 Meeting ID: 832 3624 1172; Passcode: 086548 

Or login via Zoom, using Meeting ID: 832 3624 1172; Passcode: 086548 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83236241172?pwd=MStNd3hVQkxsK2Q2aTFINGp0VHU0dz09
file:///C:/Users/rennet/Downloads/us02web.zoom.us/j/83236241172%3fpwd=MStNd3hVQkxsK2Q2aTFINGp0VHU0dz09


Policy Updates- Second Reading  
Policy Update is a quarterly subscription newsletter providing a brief discussion of current policy 
issues of concern to Oregon school districts. Sample policies reflecting these issues and changes 
in state and federal law, if applicable, are part of this newsletter.  
 
 CONTENTS  

 
BBBA – Board Member Qualifications, Optional  
CB – Superintendent, Highly Recommended  
CBC – Superintendent’s Contract, Optional  
CPA - Layoff and Recall for Administrators, Highly Recommended  
DBEA – Budget Committee, Highly Recommended 
EFA – Local Wellness, Required  
GBEA – Workplace Harassment *, Required  
GCBDB/GDBDB – Early Return to Work, Highly Recommended  
IGAC – Religion and Schools, Optional  
IGAI – Human Sexuality, AIDS/HIV, Sexually Transmitted Diseases, Health Education**, 
Highly Recommended  
IGBAF – Special Education – Individualized Education Program (IEP), Required  
IGBB – Talented and Gifted Program and/or Services, Required 
IGBBA – Talented and Gifted Students - Identification, Required  
IGBBC - Talented and Gifted – Programs and Services, Recommend delete in lieu of other 
revisions  
IGBHE – Expanded Options Program**, Highly Recommended  
IGDJ – Interscholastic Activities**, Required 
IK – Academic Achievement, Required  
IKF – Graduation Requirements**, Required  
IMB – District Improvement Program, Highly Recommended  
JEA – Compulsory Attendance**, Highly Recommended  
JGAB – Use of Restraint or Seclusion**, Required  
JHC – Student Health Services**, Highly Recommended  
KBA – Public Records Request, Highly Recommended  
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

 
Policies 
 
BOARD MEMBER QUALIFICATIONS  
Summary  
The revisions to BBBA are made to better align with the criteria stated in statute and in the 
Oregon Constitution to be an elector for a member of a school board.  
 
Local District Responsibility  
Revise and readopt optional policy BBBA – Board Member Qualifications if present in the 
Board’s policy manual.  



 
Policy(ies) Impacted by these Revisions  
BBBA – Board Member Qualifications, Optional 
 
 
SUPERINTENDENT  
Summary  
With passage of Senate Bill 1521 (2022), there are new provisions in law to consider when 
issuing a superintendent’s contract and when district school boards are making decisions related 
to operation of the district. The entire SB can be accessed here.  
 
Local  
District Responsibility Update policies with the recommended revisions if they are present in the 
Board’s policy manual and submit to the Board for readoption.  
 
Policy(ies) Impacted by these Revisions  
CB – Superintendent, Highly Recommended 
CBC – Superintendent’s Contract, Optional 
 
ADVISORY COMMITTEES TO THE BOARD  
Summary  
Senate Bill 732 was passed in the 2021 Legislative session requiring districts to establish an 
educational equity advisory committee. The bill outlines the responsibilities and makeup of the 
committee. For districts with an ADM over 10,000 the committee must convene no later than 
September 15, 2022. For districts with an ADM of 10,000 or less, the committee must convene 
no later than September 15, 2025. At least one member of the educational equity advisory 
committee needs to be appointed to the budget committee. This would happen when a position 
becomes open, it does not establish an additional budget committee member.  
 
Local District Responsibility  
If the district has previously adopted the highly recommended policy DBEA – review and 
consider revising the policy and submit to the Board for readoption.  
 
Policy(ies) Impacted by these Revisions  
DBEA – Budget Committee, Highly Recommended 
 
 
LOCAL WELLNESS  
Summary  
A triennial assessment, required by one of the components of the federal National School Lunch 
Program and delayed by COVID, of the district’s local wellness plan (aka policy) has become 
due for the first time. In anticipation, the Oregon Department of Education (ODE), Oregon 
School Boards Association and other stakeholders (OEA Choice Trust) began discussing how to 
help members realize more effective local wellness planning and implementation in their 
districts. One of the supports was to revamp the model local wellness policy and bring elements 
of the accompanying model administrative regulation into the policy. 



 
The result is a revised policy and a recommendation to rescind the administrative regulation if it 
is present in the district’s board policy manual. There are resources available from ODE on their 
website to support local wellness policy planning and implementation: Oregon Healthy Schools, 
the attached model policy is just one of those resources. The resources also include tools for the 
triennial assessment. 
 
Local District Responsibility  
Review the policy recommendations attached, along with reviewing the requirements for a 
triennial assessment available from ODE, and consider what changes need made to policy 
following results of the assessment.  
 
Policy(ies) Impacted by these Revisions  
EFA – Local Wellness, Required  
 
PUBLIC RECORDS  
Summary  
Updated to better align policy and administrative regulation language with statute and revise 
language to reflect current terms and practices.  
 
To help with public record responses, access Oregon Attorney General’s available information 
and consult counsel.  
 
Local District Responsibility  
If the Board’s policy manual includes the policy submit to Board for readoption.. 
 
Policy(ies) Impacted by these Revisions  
KBA – Public Records Request, Highly Recommended  
 
 
WORKPLACE HARASSMENT  
 
Summary  
The legal references for policy GBEA – Workplace Harassment have been updated to reflect an 
assigned statute number to what is House Bill 3041 (2021), which modified Oregon’s definition 
of sexual orientation and added a definition for gender identity; these definitions apply to a host 
of Oregon statutes including its use in ORS 659A.370. HB 3041 is now numbered ORS 
659A.370, and ORS 174.100 is the home for definitions of sexual orientation and gender identity 
both used in this referenced policy. 
 
Local District Responsibility  
Districts should update the legal references in this policy and republish. 
 
Policy(ies) Impacted by these Revisions  
GBEA – Workplace Harassment *, Required 
 



EARLY RETURN TO WORK  
Summary  
The change to policy GCBDB/GDBDB – Early Return to Work is to align with Equal 
Employment Opportunity Commission guidance. 
 
Local District Responsibility  
If the district has previously adopted highly recommended policy GCBDB/GDBDB – Early 
Return to Work, review and revise policy and submit to Board for readoption. 
 
Policy Impacted by these Revisions  
GCBDB/GDBDB – Early Return to Work, Highly Recommended 
 
 
LAYOFFS AND REDUCTIONS IN STAFF  
 
Summary  
HB 2001 (2021) changed the laws regarding reductions in staff for teachers. This law also 
changed the definition of “teacher” to be used in the layoff process (now ORS 342.120). This 
change requires districts to consider cultural or linguistic expertise when implementing a 
reduction in staff. 
 
Local District Responsibility  
Revise and readopt highly recommended policy CPA – Layoff and Recall for Administrators.  
 
Policy(ies) Impacted by these Revisions  
CPA - Layoff and Recall for Administrators, Highly Recommended  
 
 
STAFF MEMBER RELIGIOUS ACTIVITY  
 
Summary 
The United States Supreme Court recently issued a decision in Kennedy v. Bremerton Sch. Dist., 
142 S. Ct. 2407 (2022). In this case, the Court determined that the coach in question was allowed 
to engage in personal prayer following a football game, at the same time that other on-duty 
employees were able to “engage in personal secular conduct.” This decision does not mean that 
employees are able to engage in religious conduct whenever they would like to, nor does it mean 
that employees can lead students in prayer. OSBA is not changing language in its sample policy 
or AR at this time, however, the legal reference should be updated to reflect the recent decision. 
It is a good time for the district to review the policy, AR and practices and determine if any 
changes need to be made. 
 
Local District Responsibility  
Districts should update the legal references in this policy and republish. 
 
Policy(ies) Impacted by these Revisions  
IGAC – Religion and Schools, Optional 



 
STUDENT HEALTH SERVICES  
 
Summary 
A new Oregon Administrative Rule, 581-021-0593, requires public education providers, which 
includes school districts, public charter schools, and education service districts, to provide 
information on menstrual health and must include this information in their health and sexuality 
education. As a result, new language has been added to board policy IGAI - Human Sexuality, 
AIDS/HIV, Sexually Transmitted Diseases, Health Education. Oregon Department of 
Education’s (ODE) website provides a variety of related resources.  
 
In addition, new proposed language has been added to board policy JHC - Student Health 
Services, which refers to existing rules related to school nursing services and responsibilities. 
 
Local District Responsibility  
Both policies in this recommended update are highly recommended; submit to Board to consider 
revising and readopting. 
 
Policy(ies) Impacted by these Revisions 
IGAI – Human Sexuality, AIDS/HIV, Sexually Transmitted Diseases, Health Education**, 
Highly Recommended  
JHC – Student Health Services**, Highly Recommended 
 
INDIVIDUALIZED COVID-19 RECOVERY SERVICES  
 
Summary 
At its December 2021 meeting, the State Board of Education updated Temporary Rule OAR 
581-015-2229 Individualized COVID-19 Recovery Services. The OAR required IEP teams for 
eligible student to make decisions about Individualized COVID-19 Recovery Services which 
support the district’s requirement to ensure a free appropriate public education (FAPE) to 
eligible students.  
 
Local District, Responsibility  
The district should review required administrative regulation IGBAF-AR – Special Education, 
Individualized Education Program and submit to the Board to adopt the recommended changes. 
It is further recommended that the district update the legal references in this policy and republish. 
 
Policy(ies) Impacted by these Revisions  
IGBAF – Special Education – Individualized Education Program (IEP), Required  
 
 
TALENTED AND GIFTED  
 
Summary 
There have been some additional rule changes passed for talented and gifted programs. As a 
result, OSBA policy staff worked to reduce number of policies. Further, the district could choose 



to use the general complaint procedure in board policy KL to support these programs and 
services. 
 
Local District Responsibility  
Review the recommendations suggested to revise and update TAG related policies and 
administrative regulations. Essentially, policies IGBB and IGBBC have been merged, deleting 
IGBBC and leaving revised IGBB. 
 
Policy(ies) Impacted by these Revisions  
IGBB – Talented and Gifted Program and/or Services, Required  
IGBBA – Talented and Gifted Students - Identification, Required 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
EXPANDED OPTIONS  
 
Summary  
Changes result from a recent review of statute and include some revisions that modify use of the 
term ‘dropout’. The policy is further published to bring awareness to program requirements, 
notification requirements and student eligibility. 
 
Local District Responsibility  
This is a highly recommended policy that reflects statutory language in Oregon Revised Statute 
Chapter 340 – Expanded Options Program. If the policy is included in the Board’s policy 
manual, revise and submit to the Board for readoption. 
 
Policy(ies) Impacted by these Revisions  
IGBHE – Expanded Options Program**, Highly Recommended 
 
INTERSCHOLASTIC ACTIVITIES  
 
Summary 
Senate Bill 1522 (2022; see Section 13) modified the use of the term general education 
development or GED to be referred to as “high school equivalency program” which was further 
defined to mean: a program provided to assist a student in earning a certificate for passing an 
approved high school equivalency test such as the General Educational Development (GED) test. 
 
In addition, policy IGDJ has been redesignated required (from optional) to comply with OAR 
581-022-2308(2) – a new Division 22 rule requiring school districts to adopt policy with 
conditions of membership when entering into an agreement with a voluntary organization for 
interscholastic activities. As a result, much of the original language in what was an optional 
policy is now bracketed as it continues to be optional language. The remaining policy content is 
model language for a required policy regulated in OAR 581-022-2308(2). 
 
Local District Responsibility Policy  
IGDJ is now designated as required and recommended language for the required portion of the 
policy is included at the end of this model sample policy. The district should review suggested 



revisions and consider what optional language to continue with, and readopt to make policy 
required by OAR 581-022-2308. 
 
Policy(ies) Impacted by these Revisions  
IGDJ – Interscholastic Activities**, Required 
 
 
ACADEMIC ACHIEVEMENT  
 
Summary  
Policy IK – Academic Achievement language is revised to align with OAR581-022-2270. 
 
Local District Responsibility 
 Review and revise required policy IK – Academic Achievement with recommended updates and 
submit to the Board for readoption.  
 
Policy(ies) Impacted by these Revisions  
IK – Academic Achievement, Required 
 
GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS  
 
Summary 
There have been additional changes to graduation requirements in Oregon as a result of Senate 
Bill 1522 (2022). The bill provided a new definition for “an educational program in this state” 
and modified what credits the district shall accept from other educational programs in this state 
to satisfy credit requirements for a student to graduate.  
 
An additional change modified the definition of “world language” in graduation requirements to 
include sign language, heritage language and languages other than a student’s primary language. 
 
Local District Responsibility 
 
A graduation requirement policy is required if the district has graduation requirements in 
addition to the minimum requirements outlined in law, such as if the district requires more than 
24 credit requirements for a high school diploma, has an honors diploma, or has other noncredit 
requirements. Review the district’s current graduation requirements if published elsewhere and 
review policy and revise with the recommended changes and submit to the Board for readoption. 
Please update legal references as recommended.  
 
Policy(ies) Impacted by these Revisions  
IKF – Graduation Requirements**, Required 
 
 
 
 
 



IMPROVEMENT PLAN/PROGRAM  
 
Summary  
The State Board of Education recently made a revision to the rules related to improvement 
plans/programs, it changes the self-evaluation requirement from once every three years to once 
every four years. The remaining revisions recommended reflect changes from other updates of 
the rule. 
 
Local District Responsibility  
If the district has this policy consider the recommended updates and submit policy to the Board 
for readoption. 
 
Policy(ies) Impacted by these Revisions  
IMB – District Improvement Program, Highly Recommended  
 
 
COMPULSORY ATTENDANCE  
 
Summary  
There have been recent changes to compulsory attendance removing the Class C violation and 
related fees, court costs and fines associated with juvenile delinquency matters (Senate Bill 817, 
2021). Other conditions of compulsory attendance and truancy remain unchanged. 
 
Local District Responsibility  
If the policy is in the Board’s manual, consider updating with the proposed revisions, submit 
policy to the Board for readoption. 
 
Policy(ies) Impacted by these Revisions  
JEA – Compulsory Attendance**, Highly Recommended  
 
 
RESTRAINT AND SECLUSION  
 
Summary  
The updates to policy are recommended to add mention of prohibitions related to seclusion cells. 
 
Local District Responsibility  
The changes to policy are recommended to identify prohibitions related to both restraint and 
seclusion. Revise and submit to the Board for readoption.  
 
Policy(ies) Impacted by these Revisions  
JGAB – Use of Restraint or Seclusion**, Required 
 
 
 



8/08/22│LF Board Member Qualifications – BBBA 
1-1 

 

Newberg School District 29J 
Code: BBBA 
Adopted:  
 

Board Member Qualifications 
 
A person is eligible to serve as a Board member if the person is a qualified elector1 of the district and has 
been a resident within the district for one year immediately preceding the election or appointment. If the 
district and the position sought is one elected or nominated by zone, the person must also reside in the 
zone from which the person is nominated except as authorized by law. 
 
A person who is an employee of the district is not eligible to serve as a Board member while so employed. 
A person who is an employee of a public charter school may not serve as a member of the Board of the 
district in which the public charter school that employs the person is located.  
 
END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 247.002 
ORS 247.035 
ORS 249.013 

ORS 332.016 
ORS 332.018 
ORS 332.030 

ORS 332.124 
ORS 332.126

 
OREGON CONSTITUTION, ARTICLE II, Section 2. 

                                                 
1 “Elector” means an individual qualified to vote under Article II, section 2, Oregon Constitution. 

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-247
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-247
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-249
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/Pages/OrConst.aspx


HR8/08/22│LF Superintendent – CB 
1-1 

 

Newberg School District 29J 
 
Code: CB 
Adopted:  
 

Superintendent 
 
The superintendent1 is designated as the district’s chief executive officer. Under the Board’s direction, the 
superintendent exercises general supervision of all district schools, personnel and departments. The 
superintendent is responsible for managing the schools under the Board’s policies and is accountable to the 
Board for that management. The Board may not direct the superintendent to take any action that conflicts 
with a local, state or federal law2 that applies to school districts3. 
 
The superintendent may delegate to other district personnel any powers and duties imposed upon the 
superintendent by Board policies or by vote of the Board. Delegation of power or duty will not relieve the 
superintendent of responsibility for action taken under such delegation. 
 
END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 332.505 
ORS 332.515 

OAR 581-022-2405 
OAR 584-005-0005(51)

 
Senate Bill 1521 (2022) 

                                                 
1 The term “superintendent” includes an interim superintendent. 

2 “Local, state or federal law” means a local, state or federal directive having the force of law, including an ordinance, a city or 
county resolution, a statute, a court decision, an administrative rule or regulation, an order issued in compliance with ORS 
Chapter 183, an executive order or any other directive, declaration or statement that is issued in compliance with the law as 
having the force of law and that is issued by a local government as defined in ORS 174.116, the state government as defined in 
ORS 174.111 or the federal government. 

3 Also includes taking any action that conflicts with law that applies to education service districts. 

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-584


8/08/22│LF Superintendent’s Contract – CBC 
1-2 

 

Newberg School District 29J 
 
Code: CBC 
Adopted:  
 

Superintendent’s Contract 
 
The superintendent, upon appointment by the Board, will receive a written contract which will state the 
terms of employment such as compensation, benefits and other conditions. The Board may not issue a 
contract that includes terms which direct the superintendent1 to take any action that conflicts with a local, 
state or federal law2 that applies to the district3, or which allows the Board to take an adverse employment 
action against the superintendent for complying with such laws. Contracts shall not be issued for more 
than three years in duration. The contract shall automatically expire at the end of its term. The Board may 
elect to issue a subsequent contract at any time for up to three years. 
 
The compensation and benefits for the position of superintendent will be fixed by the Board and based 
upon the responsibilities required of the superintendent in performing their duties. The Board may not 
enter into an employment contract that contains provisions that expressly obligate the district to 
compensate the superintendent for work that is not performed. 
 
Provisions for termination of the superintendent’s employment, either by the Board or the superintendent, 
will also be set forth in the superintendent’s employment contract. The employment contract, if it includes 
a mutually agreed to termination-without-cause provision by the Board, will include a 12-month notice of 
termination for such provision. 
 
The district may provide health benefits for a superintendent that is no longer employed by the district 
until the superintendent: 
 
1. Reaches 65 years of age; or 

2. Finds new employment that provides health benefits. 

For a period of one year after termination of the contract, the superintendent may not: 
 
1. Purchase property or surplus property owned by the district or public charter school; or 

2. Use property owned by the district or public charter school in a manner other than the manner 
permitted for the general public. 

END OF POLICY 

                                                 
1 The term “superintendent” includes an interim superintendent. 

2 “Local, state or federal law” means a local, state or federal directive having the force of law, including an ordinance, a city or 
county resolution, a statute, a court decision, an administrative rule or regulation, an order issued in compliance with ORS 
Chapter 183, an executive order or any other directive, declaration or statement that is issued in compliance with the law as 
having the force of law and that is issued by a local government as defined in ORS 174.116, the state government as defined in 
ORS 174.111 or the federal government. 

3 Also includes taking any action that conflicts with law that applies to education services districts. 



8/08/22│LF Superintendent’s Contract – CBC 
2-2 

 

 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 332.432 
ORS 332.505 

ORS 342.549 
ORS 342.815 

OAR 584-005-0005(51)

 
Senate Bill 1521 (2022) 

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-342
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-342
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-584


HR8/08/22| SL Layoff and Recall for Administrators – CPA 
1-1 

 

Newberg School District 29J 
 
Code: CPA 
Adopted:  
 

Layoff and Recall for Administrators 
 
This policy applies to all licensed administrators below the rank of assistant superintendent who are not 
considered teachers under ORS 342.934.1 
 
The Board retains the right to determine when a layoff is necessary. Layoffs shall be by position. 
A reduction in hours does not constitute a layoff. 
 
The factors considered in the layoff process will be license, seniority, qualifications, merit and/or 
competence.  
 
The Board desires/expects administration to retain, consistent with state law, the most capable and 
productive of the licensed and qualified employees needed to carry out the approved programs of the 
district’s schools. 
 
Prior to initial development of a recall procedure for administrators, the Board will consult with the 
employees or a designated representative of the employees covered by this policy. 
 
The district will develop administrative regulations to implement this policy. 
 
END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 332.107 ORS 342.934
 

                                                 
1 Prior to laying off any administrators, the district will work with legal counsel to determine if the cultural or linguistic 
expertise criteria apply to any impacted employees. 

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-342


HR8/08/22│RS Budget Committee – DBEA 
1-2 

 

Newberg School District 29J 
 
Code: DBEA 
Adopted:  
 

Budget Committee 
 

 
By law, the budget committee is charged with making recommendations concerning financial priorities. 
 
The budget committee will have the responsibility for reviewing the financial programs of the district, 
reviewing the proposed district budget as presented by the superintendent, and recommending an annual or 
biennial district budget in keeping with the provisions of applicable state laws. 
 
Educational policy decisions are the responsibility of the Board, not the budget committee. The committee 
does not have the authority to add programs or to approve additional personnel or increase salaries. While 
the committee may, in effect, delete programs because of a fund decrease, the committee is charged 
primarily with a fiscal evaluation of programs. The committee may, alternatively, set an amount that 
changes the recommended budget and may request the administration make such changes in accordance 
with priorities set by the Board. 
 
The following will govern the make-up and process of establishing the district’s budget committee: 
 
1. The budget committee consists of seven members appointed by the Board plus the elected Board 

members of the district. To be eligible for appointment, the appointive member must: 

a. Live and be registered to vote in the district; 
b. Not be an officer, agent or employee of the district. 

2. At least one member of the budget committee must be a member of the district’s educational equity 
advisory committee.1 

3. No budget committee member may receive any type of compensation from the district; 

4. At its first meeting in September, the Board will identify vacant budget committee positions which 
must be filled by appointment of the Board. The Board will announce the vacancies and receive 
applications from interested persons during the month of October. Such applications will include a 
signed statement that the applicant is willing to serve as a member of the budget committee and to 
adhere to the policies of the district. The Board may appoint budget committee members to as many 
consecutive terms as deemed appropriate; 

5. At the first regular Board meeting in November, the Board will review the names of persons filing 
applications and names of those persons who have served previously and are willing to be 

                                                 
1 Districts with ADM over 10,000 must convene an educational equity advisory committee no later than September 15, 2022. 
Districts with ADM of 10,000 or under are not required to convene an educational equity advisory committee until September 
15, 2025. 



HR8/08/22│RS Budget Committee – DBEA 
2-2 

 

reappointed. At the first regular meeting in December, the Board will appoint persons to fill the 
vacant positions; 

6. The appointive committee members of a budget committee in a district that prepares an annual 
budget will be appointed for three-year terms. The terms will be staggered so that, as near as 
practicable, one-third of the appointive members’ terms end each year.  

7. If any appointive member is unable to complete the term for which the member was appointed, the 
Board will announce the vacancy at the first regular Board meeting following the committee 
member’s resignation or removal. An appointment to fill the position for its unexpired term will be 
made at the next regular Board meeting. 

Budget Committee Responsibilities 
 
The following items explain the budget committee responsibilities: 
 
1. At its first meeting after appointment, the budget committee will elect a presiding officer from 

among its members. It may also establish other ground rules as necessary for successful operation of 
the committee; 

2. A majority of the constituted committee is required for passing an action item. Majority for a 14-
member budget committee is 8 Therefore, if only 8 members are present, a unanimous vote is 
needed for passing an action; 

3. The budget committee shall hold one or more meetings to receive the budget message, receive the 
budget document and to provide members of the public with an opportunity to ask questions about 
and comment on the budget document. The budget officer shall announce the time and place for all 
meetings, as provided by law. All meetings of the budget committee are open to the public; 

4. The budget committee may request any information used in the preparation of or for revising the 
budget document from the superintendent or business manager. The committee may request the 
attendance of any district employee at its meetings. The budget committee will approve the budget 
document as submitted by the superintendent or as subsequently revised by the committee; 

5. After approval of the original or revised budget document, the budget committee’s duties cease. The 
hearing on the approved budget is held by the Board. 

END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 174.130 
ORS 192.610 to -192.695 

ORS 294.305 to -294.565 
ORS 329.711 

 
ORS 433.835 to -433.875

 

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-174
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-192
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-294
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-329
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-433


R8/08/22│LF Local Wellness – EFA 
1-5 

 

Newberg School District 29J 
 
Code: EFA 
Adopted:  
 

Local Wellness 
 
The district is committed to the optimal development of every student and believes that a positive, safe and 
health-promoting learning environment is necessary for students to have the opportunity to achieve 
personal, academic, developmental and social success. 

To help ensure students possess the knowledge and skills necessary to make healthy choices for a lifetime, 
the superintendent shall prepare and implement a comprehensive district nutrition program consistent with 
state and federal requirements for districts sponsoring the National School Lunch Program (NSLP) and/or 
the School Breakfast Program (SBP). The program shall reflect the Board’s commitment to providing 
adequate time for instruction that fosters healthy eating through nutrition education and promotion, serving 
healthy and appealing foods at district schools, developing food-use guidelines for staff and establishing 
liaisons with nutrition service providers, as appropriate. 

POLICY IMPLEMENTATION, MONITORING, ACCOUNTABILITY AND COMMUNITY 
ENGAGEMENT 

Implementation 

The district shall manage and coordinate the implementation of this local wellness policy. 

Implementation will consist of, but not be limited to, the following: 

1. Delineating roles, responsibilities, actions and timelines specific to each school; 

2. Generating and disseminating information about who will be responsible to make what change, by 
how much, where and when; 

3. Establishing standards for all foods and beverages provided (but not sold) to students during the 
school day on participating school campuses; 

4. Establishing standards and nutrition guidelines for all foods and beverages sold to students during 
the school day on participating school campuses that meet state and federal nutrition standards for 
NSLP and SBP, competitive foods, permit marketing of same that meets the competitive food 
nutrition standards, and promotes student health and reduces child obesity; and 

5. Establishing specific goals for nutrition promotion and education, physical activity and other school-
based activities that promote student wellness. 

The Board designates the superintendent to be responsible for ensuring each school meets the goals 
outlined and complies with this policy. 

Record Keeping 



R8/08/22│LF Local Wellness – EFA 
2-5 

 

The district will retain the following records to document compliance with the local wellness policy 
requirements at the district’s administrative offices: 

1. The written local wellness policy; 

2. Documentation to demonstrate the policy has been made available to the public; 

3. Documentation of efforts to review and update the local wellness policy, including an indication of 
who participates in the update and the methods the district uses to make stakeholders aware of their 
ability to participate; 

4. Documentation to demonstrate compliance with the annual public notification requirements; 

5. Documentation of the district’s most recent assessment on the implementation of the local wellness 
policy; 

6. Documentation to demonstrate the most recent assessment on the implementation of the local 
wellness policy has been made available to the public. 

Notification of Policy 

The district will inform the public about the content and implementation of the local wellness policy, and 
post the policy and any updates to the policy on the district website annually. Included will be, if available, 
the most recent assessment of the implementation, and a description of the progress being made in 
attaining the goals of the policy. 

The district will publicize the name and contact information of the district or school official(s) leading and 
coordinating the policy and information on how the public can get involved with the local wellness policy. 
This information will be published on the district’s website and in district communications. 

Triennial Progress Assessments 

At least once every three years, the district will evaluate the implementation of this policy and its progress 
with a triennial assessment and produce a progress report that will include: 

1. The extent to which schools under the jurisdiction of the district are in compliance with the policy; 

2. The extent to which the district’s policy compares to model local school wellness policy; and 

3. A description of the progress made in attaining the goals of the district’s policy. 

The district will publish the triennial progress report on the district website when available. The district 
will update or modify the policy based on results of the triennial assessment. 

Community Involvement, Outreach and Communications (Review of, and Updating Policy) 

The district will actively communicate ways in which the community can participate in the development, 
implementation and periodic review and update of the local wellness policy. The district will communicate 
information about opportunities on the district’s website, on school websites, and/or in district or school 
communications. The district will ensure that communications are culturally and linguistically appropriate 
to the community. 



R8/08/22│LF Local Wellness – EFA 
3-5 

 

Parents, students, representatives of the school food authority, teachers of physical education, school 
health professionals, the Board, school administrators, and the general public will be solicited to 
participate in the periodic review and update of the local school wellness policy. 

NUTRITION PROMOTION AND NUTRITION EDUCATION 

Nutrition promotion and nutrition education positively influence lifelong eating behaviors by using 
evidence-based strategies and techniques and nutrition messages and by creating food environments that 
support healthy nutrition choices. 

Nutrition promotion, including marketing and advertising nutritious foods and beverages to students, will 
be implemented consistently through a comprehensive and multi-channel approach, (e.g., in the classroom, 
cafeteria and at home) by staff, teachers, parents, students and the community. 

To ensure adequate nutrition promotion, the following goals will be implemented: 

School Meals 

[Schools within the district participate in U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) child nutrition 
program(s), administered through the Oregon Department of Education (ODE), including the National 
School Lunch Program NSLP, the School Breakfast Program SBP, Fresh Fruit & Vegetable Program 
(FFVP), and Summer Food Service Program (SFSP). The district also operates additional nutrition-related 
programs and activities including Farm-to-School programs, school gardens, Breakfast in the Classroom, 
Mobile Breakfast carts or Grab ‘n’ Go Breakfast. 

The district’s available meal program(s) will operate to meet meal pattern requirements and dietary 
specifications in accordance with the Healthy, Hunger-Free Kids Act and applicable federal laws and 
regulations. 

The principal(s) will support nutrition and food services operation as addressed in Board policy EFAA – 
District Nutrition and Food Services and its accompanying administrative regulation EFAA-AR – 
Reimbursable Meals and Milk Programs. 

Water 

Free, safe, unflavored, drinking water will be available to all students throughout the school day and 
throughout every school campus. The district will make drinking water available where school meals are 
served during mealtimes. 

Competitive Foods and Beverages 

The district controls the sale of all competitive foods. All foods and beverages outside the reimbursable 
school meal programs that are sold to students on the school campus during the school day will meet or 
exceed Smart Snacks Standards1. These standards will apply in all locations and through all services where 
foods and beverages are sold, which may include, but are not limited to, à la carte options in cafeterias, 
vending machines, school stores, snack or food carts and fund raising. 

                                                 
1 Oregon Department of Education, Oregon Smart Snacks Standards 

http://www.oregon.gov/ode/students-and-family/childnutrition/SNP/Pages/SmartSnacks.aspx


R8/08/22│LF Local Wellness – EFA 
4-5 

 

Celebrations and Rewards/Incentives 

All foods and beverages offered on the school campus are expected to meet the nutrition standards set by 
the USDA and the Oregon Smart Snacks Standards. This includes, but is not limited to, celebrations, 
parties, and classroom snacks brought by parents.  

Fund Raising 

Foods and beverages that meet or exceed the nutrition standards set by the USDA and the Oregon Smart 
Snacks Standards may be sold through fund raisers on the school campus during the school day. Such 
requests to conduct a fund raiser will be submitted to the principal or designee for approval before starting. 

Food and Beverage Marketing in Schools 

Any foods and beverages marketed or promoted to students on the school campus during the school day 
will meet or exceed the nutrition standards for competitive foods set by the USDA. 

PHYSICAL ACTIVITY AND PHYSICAL EDUCATION 

A quality physical education program is an essential component for all students to learn about and 
participate in physical activity. The district will develop and assess student performance standards and 
program minute requirements in order to meet ODE’s physical education content standards and state law. 

Physical activity should be included in the school’s daily education program for grades K through 12 and 
include regular, instructional physical education, as well as co-curricular activities and recess. 

In order to ensure students are afforded the opportunity to engage in physical education and physical 
activity in the school setting, the following goals are established: 

1. Physical education courses will be the environment where students learn, practice and are assessed on 
developmentally appropriate knowledge, skills and confidence to become physically literate; 

2. Instruction, provided by adequately prepared teachers, i.e., licensed or endorsed to teach physical 
education, will meet the state adopted academic content standards for physical education (Oregon Revised 
Statute (ORS) 329.045).  

3. Every public school student in kindergarten through grade 8 shall participate in physical education for 
the entire school year. Students in kindergarten through grade 5 shall participate for a least 150 minutes 
during each school week, and students in grades 6 through 8 for at least 225 minutes per school week; 

4. Physical activity will be integrated across curricula and throughout the school day. Movement will 
be made a part of all classes or courses as part of a well-rounded education; 

5. Physical activity during the school day (including, but not limited to, recess, classroom physical 
activity breaks or physical education) will not be used as a punishment or a reward; 

 A student with a disability shall have suitably adapted physical education incorporated as part of their 
individualized education program (IEP) developed under ORS 343.151. A student who does not have an 
IEP but has chronic health problems, other disabling conditions or other special needs that preclude them 
from participating in regular physical education instruction, shall have suitably adapted physical education 
incorporated as part of their individualized health plan, developed by the district. 



R8/08/22│LF Local Wellness – EFA 
5-5 

 

 Employee Wellness 

The district encourages staff to pursue a healthy lifestyle that contributes to their improved health status, 
improved morale and a greater personal commitment to the school’s overall wellness program. Many 
actions and conditions that affect the health of staff may also influence the health and learning of students. 
The physical and mental health of staff is integral to promoting and protecting the health of students and 
helps foster their academic success. The district’s Employee Wellness Program will promote health, 
reduce risky behaviors of employees and identify and correct conditions in the workplace that can 
compromise the health of staff, reduce their levels of productivity, impede student success and contribute 
to escalating health-related costs such as absenteeism. 

The district will collaborate with community partners to identify programs, services and/or resources to 
compliment and enrich employee wellness endeavors. 

END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 327.531 
ORS 327.537 
ORS 329.496 
ORS 332.107 

ORS 336.423 
 
OAR 581-051-0100 
OAR 581-051-0305 

OAR 581-051-0306 
OAR 581-051-0310 
OAR 581-051-0400

 
Healthy, Hunger-Free Kids Act of 2010, 42 U.S.C. §1758b (2018). 
National School Lunch Program, 7 C.F.R. Part 210 (2022). 
School Breakfast Program, 7 C.F.R. Part 220 (2022). 

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-327
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-327
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-329
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-336
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581


R10/05/21│LF Workplace Harassment * – GBEA 
1-2 

 

Newberg School District 29J 
 
Code: GBEA 
Adopted:  
 

Workplace Harassment * 
 
Workplace harassment is prohibited and shall not be tolerated. This includes workplace harassment that 
occurs between district employees or between a district employee and the district in the workplace or at a 
work-related event that is off district premises and coordinated by or through the district, or between a 
district and a district employee off district premises. Elected school board members, volunteers and interns 
are subject to this policy. 
 
Any district employee who believes they have been a victim of workplace harassment may file a report 
with the district employee designated in the administrative regulation GBEA-AR - Workplace Harassment 
Reporting and Procedure, may file a report through the Bureau of Labor and Industries’ (BOLI) complaint 
resolution process or under any other available law. The reporting of such information is voluntary. The 
district employee making the report is advised to document any incidents of workplace harassment. 
 
“Workplace harassment” means conduct that constitutes discrimination prohibited by Oregon Revised 
Statute (ORS) 659A.030 (discrimination in employment based on race, color, religion, sex, sexual 
orientation, gender identity, national origin, marital status, age, or expunged juvenile record), including 
conduct that constitutes sexual assault1 or that constitutes conduct prohibited by ORS 659A.082 
(discrimination against person in uniformed service) or 659A.112 (discrimination in employment based on 
disability). 
 
The district, upon receipt of a report from a district employee who believes they are a victim of workplace 
harassment, shall provide information about legal resources and counseling and support services, including 
any available employee assistance services. The district employee receiving the report, whether a 
supervisor of the employer or the district employee designated to receive reports, is advised to document 
any incidents of workplace harassment, and shall provide a copy of this policy and accompanying 
administrative regulation to the victim upon their disclosure about alleged workplace harassment. 
 
All incidents of behavior that may violate this policy shall be promptly investigated. 
 
Any person who reports workplace harassment has the right to be protected from retaliation. 
 
The district may not require or coerce a district employee to enter into a nondisclosure2 or 
nondisparagement3 agreement. 

                                                 
1 “Sexual assault” means unwanted conduct of a sexual nature that is inflicted upon a person or compelled through the use of 
physical force, manipulation, threat or intimidation. 

2 A “nondisclosure” agreement or provision prevents either party from disclosing the contents of or circumstances surrounding 
the agreement. 

3 A “nondisparagement” agreement or provision prevents either party from making disparaging statements about the other party. 



R10/05/21│LF Workplace Harassment * – GBEA 
2-2 

 

The district may not enter into an agreement with an employee or prospective employee, as a condition of 
employment, continued employment, promotion, compensation, or the receipt of benefits, that contains a 
nondisclosure provision, a nondisparagement provision or any other provision that has the purpose or 
effect of preventing the employee from disclosing or discussing workplace harassment that occurred 
between district employees or between a district employee and the district, in the workplace or at a work-
related event that is off district premises and coordinated by or through the district, or between a district 
employee and employer off district premises. 
 
The district may enter into a settlement agreement, separation or severance agreement that includes one or 
more of the following provisions only when a district employee claiming to be aggrieved by workplace 
harassment requests to enter into the agreement: 1) a nondisclosure or nondisparagement provision; 2) a 
provision that prevents disclosure of factual information relating to the claim of workplace harassment; or 
3) a no-rehire provision that prohibits the employee from seeking reemployment with the district as a term 
or condition of the agreement. The agreement must provide the district employee at least seven days after 
signing the agreement to revoke it. 
 
If the district determines in good faith that an employee has engaged in workplace harassment, the district 
may enter into a settlement, separation or severance agreement that includes one or more of the provisions 
described in the previous paragraph. 
 
It is the intent of the Board that appropriate corrective action will be taken by the district to stop workplace 
harassment, prevent its recurrence and address negative consequences. Staff members in violation of this 
policy shall be subject to discipline, up to and including dismissal and/or additional workplace harassment 
awareness training, as appropriate. Other individuals (e.g., board members, witnesses, and volunteers) 
whose behavior is found to be in violation of this policy shall be subject to appropriate sanctions as 
determined and imposed by the superintendent or the Board. 
 
The district shall make this policy available to all district employees and shall be made a part of district 
orientation materials provided and copied to new district employees at the time of hire. 
 
The superintendent will establish a process of reporting incidents of workplace harassment and the prompt 
investigation. 
 
END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 174.100 
ORS 243.317 - 243.323 
ORS 659A.001 
ORS 659A.003 
ORS 659A.006 

ORS 659A.029 
ORS 659A.030 
ORS 659A.082 
ORS 659A.112 
ORS 659A.370 

ORS 659A.820 
ORS 659A.875 
ORS 659A.885 
OAR 584-020-0040 
OAR 584-020-0041

 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d (2018). 
Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e (2018). 
Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. §§ 1681-1683 (2018); Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in 
Education Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance, 34 C.F.R. Part 106 (2020). 
Bartsch v. Elkton School District, FDA-13-011 (March 27, 2014). 
 

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-174
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-243
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-659a
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-659a
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-659a
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-659a
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-659a
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-659a
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-659a
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-659a
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-659a
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-659a
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-659a
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-584
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-584


HR8/08/22│RS Early Return to Work – GCBDB/GDBDB 
1-1 

 

Newberg School District 29J 
 
 
Code: GCBDB/GDBDB 
Adopted:  
 

Early Return to Work 
 
Efforts will be made, on a case-by-case basis, to reinstate ill or injured employees to work. The 
reinstatement will be within the requirements of the injury, the limitations of the law and the limitations of 
the district. 
 
In the event an employee is not able to perform essential job functions completely after an illness or injury, 
the district will determine whether reasonable accommodations are appropriate that would provide a 
temporary light-duty assignment, restructuring of a position to include modified workdays, shift or part-
time work, hours of work or modifications in facilities, equipment, special aids and services. Reasonable 
accommodations must not result in an undue hardship on the district. 
 
If an employee cannot be reasonably accommodated in their current position, the district will review 
alternative assignments. The employee, if qualified, will be offered an available vacant position with or 
without reasonable accommodations. If recovery is ongoing, sick leave is exhausted and no other 
assignment is possible, the district may provide temporary unpaid leave as an accommodation in 
accordance with state and federal law. 
The district will maintain current job descriptions for each position. Physical requirements for appropriate 
job categories will be established. 
 
The superintendent or designee will develop procedures as necessary to implement this policy. 
 
END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 659A.043 ORS 659A.046 OAR 436-110-0003 to -0900
 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101-12213; 29 C.F.R. Part 1630 (2016); 28 C.F.R. Part 35 (2016). 
Americans with Disabilities Act Amendments Act of 2008. 

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-659a
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-659a
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-436-110


2/08/18│PH Religion and Schools – IGAC 
1-1 

 

Newberg School District 29J 
 
Code: IGAC 
Adopted:  
 

Religion and Schools 
 
Teachers shall be permitted to teach or present to students information concerning religions and religious 
beliefs, but teachers shall not promote or inhibit, openly or covertly or by subtlety, a particular religion, 
religious belief or nonreligious belief. 
 
Students and staff members may be excused from participating in programs or activities which are 
contrary to their religious beliefs without penalty. 
 
END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 332.107 ORS 336.035
 
U.S. Const. amend. I. 
OR. CONST., art. I. 
Kennedy v. Bremerton Sch. Dist., 142 S. Ct. 2407 (2022). 

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-336


HR8/08/22│LF Human Sexuality, AIDS/HIV, Sexually Transmitted  
Diseases, Health Education** – IGAI 

1-3 
 

Newberg School District 29J 
 
Code: IGAI 
Adopted:  
 

Human Sexuality, AIDS/HIV, Sexually Transmitted Diseases, Health Education** 
 
The district shall provide an age appropriate, comprehensive plan of instruction focusing on human 
sexuality, HIV/AIDS and sexually transmitted infections and disease prevention in elementary and 
secondary schools as an integral part of health education and other subjects. Course material and 
instruction for all human sexuality education courses that discuss human sexuality shall enhance a 
student’s understanding of sexuality as a normal and healthy aspect of human development. A part of the 
comprehensive plan of instruction shall provide age-appropriate child sexual abuse prevention instruction 
for students in kindergarten through grade 12. The district must provide a minimum of four instructional 
sessions annually; one instructional session is equal to one standard class period. In addition, the 
HIV/AIDS and sexually transmitted infections and disease prevention education and the human sexuality 
education comprehensive plan shall provide adequate instruction at least annually, for all students in 
grades 6 through 8 and at least twice during grades 9 through 12. 
 
Parents, teachers, school administrators, local health departments staff, other community representatives 
and persons from the medical community who are knowledgeable of the latest scientific information and 
effective education strategies shall develop the plan of instruction and align it with the Oregon Health 
Education Standards and Benchmarks. 
 
The Board shall approve the plan of instruction and require that it be reviewed and updated biennially in 
accordance with new scientific information and effective educational strategies. 
 
Parents of minor students shall be notified in advance of any human sexuality or AIDS/HIV instruction. 
Any parent may request that their child be excused from that portion of the instructional program under the 
procedures set forth in Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 336.035(2). 
 
The comprehensive plan of instruction shall include the following information that: 
 
1. Promotes abstinence for school-age youth and mutually monogamous relationships with an 

uninfected partner for adults; 

2. Allays those fears concerning HIV that are scientifically groundless; 

3. Is balanced and medically accurate; 

4. Provides balanced, accurate information and skills-based instruction on risks and benefits of 
contraceptives, condoms and other disease reduction measures; 

5. Discusses responsible sexual behaviors and hygienic practices which may reduce or eliminate 
unintended pregnancy, exposure to HIV, hepatitis B/C and other sexually transmitted infections and 
diseases; 

6. Stresses the risks of behaviors such as the sharing of needles or syringes for injecting illegal drugs 
and controlled substances; 



HR8/08/22│LF Human Sexuality, AIDS/HIV, Sexually Transmitted  
Diseases, Health Education** – IGAI 

2-3 
 

7. Discusses the characteristics of the emotional, physical and psychological aspects of a healthy 
relationship; 

8. Discusses the benefits of delaying pregnancy beyond the adolescent years as a means to better 
ensure a healthy future for parents and their children. The student shall be provided with statistics 
based on the latest medical information regarding both the health benefits and the possible side 
effects of all forms of contraceptives including the success and failure rates for prevention of 
pregnancy, sexually transmitted infections and diseases; 

9. Stresses that HIV/STDs and hepatitis B/C can be possible hazards of sexual contact; 

10. Provides students with information about Oregon laws that address young people’s rights and 
responsibilities relating to childbearing and parenting; 

11. Advises students of consequences of having sexual relations with persons younger than 18 years of 
age to whom they are not married; 

12. Encourages family communication and involvement and helps students learn to make responsible, 
respectful and healthy decisions; 

13. Teaches that no form of sexual expression or behavior is acceptable when it physically or 
emotionally harms oneself or others and that it is wrong to take advantage of or exploit another 
person; 

14. Teaches that consent is an essential component of healthy sexual behavior. Course material shall 
promote positive attitudes and behaviors related to healthy relationships and sexuality, and 
encourage active student bystander behavior; 

15. Teaches students how to identify and respond to attitudes and behaviors which contribute to sexual 
violence; 

16. Validates the importance of one’s honesty, respect for each person’s dignity and well-being, and 
responsibility for one’s actions; 

17. Uses inclusive materials and strategies that recognizes different sexual orientations, gender identities 
and gender expression; 

18. Includes information about relevant community resources, how to access these resources, and the 
laws that protect the rights of minors to anonymously access these resources; and 

19. Is culturally inclusive. 

The comprehensive plan of instruction shall emphasize skills-based instruction that: 
 
1. Assists students to develop and practice effective communication skills, development of self-esteem 

and ability to resist peer pressure; 

2. Provides students with the opportunity to learn about and personalize peer, media, technology and 
community influences that both positively and negatively impact their attitudes and decisions related 



HR8/08/22│LF Human Sexuality, AIDS/HIV, Sexually Transmitted  
Diseases, Health Education** – IGAI 

3-3 
 

to healthy sexuality, relationships and sexual behaviors, including decisions to abstain from sexual 
intercourse; 

3. Enhances students’ ability to access valid health information and resources related to their sexual 
health; 

4. Teaches how to develop and communicate sexual and reproductive boundaries; 

5. Is research based, evidence based or best practice; and 

6. Aligns with the Oregon Health Education Content Standards and Benchmarks. 

All sexuality education programs emphasize that abstinence from sexual intercourse, when practiced 
consistently and correctly, is the only 100 percent effective method against unintended pregnancy, 
sexually transmitted HIV and hepatitis B/C infection and other sexually transmitted infections and 
diseases. 

Abstinence is to be stressed, but not to the exclusion of contraceptives and condoms for preventing 
unintended pregnancy, HIV infection, hepatitis B/C infection and other sexually transmitted infections and 
diseases. Such courses are to acknowledge the value of abstinence while not devaluing or ignoring those 
students who have had or are having sexual relationships. Further, sexuality education materials, including 
instructional strategies, and activities must not, in any way use shame or fear-based tactics. 

Materials and information shall be presented in a manner sensitive to the fact that there are students who 
have experienced, perpetrated or witnessed sexual abuse and relationship violence. 

The district’s health and sexuality education will provide information on menstrual health and will be 
inclusive and affirming of transgender, non-binary, intersex, and two spirit/indigiqueer students; be 
positive and not fear- or shame-based; be age-appropriate; be medically-accurate; be culturally responsive; 
and be accessible for students with disabilities. 

END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 336.035 
ORS 336.059 
ORS 336.107 
ORS 336.455 - 336.474 

ORS 339.370 - 339.400 
 
OAR 581-021-0009 
OAR 581-021-0593 

OAR 581-022-2030 
OAR 581-022-2050 
OAR 581-022-2220

 

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-336
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-336
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-336
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-336
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581


R2/16/12│RS Special Education - Individualized Education Program (IEP)** – IGBAF 
1-1 

 

Newberg School District 29J 
 
Code: IGBAF 
Adopted:  
 

Special Education - Individualized Education Program (IEP)** 
 
An individualized education program (IEP) shall be developed and implemented for each student with 
disabilities in the district, kindergarten through 21 years of age, including those who attend a public charter 
school located in the district, are placed in or referred to a private school or facility by the district; or 
receive related services from the district. The district is responsible for initiating and conducting the 
meetings to develop, review and revise the IEP of a student with disabilities. The district will ensure that 
one or both parents are present at each meeting or are afforded the opportunity to participate and are given 
a copy of the IEP. A meeting to develop an IEP shall be held within 30 calendar days of a determination 
that the student needs special education and related services, once every 365 days thereafter and when 
considering a change in the IEP or placement. 
 
If a student is to be placed or referred to a private school or facility or attends a private or parochial school, 
the district will ensure that a representative of the private school or facility attends the IEP meeting. If the 
representative of the private school or facility is unable to attend the IEP meeting, the district shall use 
other methods to ensure participation including but not limited to, individual or conference telephone calls 
or individual meetings. 
 
END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 343.151 
ORS 343.155 
 
OAR 581-015-2000 
OAR 581-015-2190 
OAR 581-015-2195 
OAR 581-015-2200 

OAR 581-015-2205 
OAR 581-015-2210 
OAR 581-015-2215 
OAR 581-015-2220 
OAR 581-015-2225 
OAR 581-015-2229 
OAR 581-015-2230 

OAR 581-015-2235 
OAR 581-015-2055 
OAR 581-015-2600 
OAR 581-015-2065 
OAR 581-015-2265

 
Assistance to States for the Education of Children with Disabilities, 34 C.F.R. §§ 300.5 to -300.6, 300.22 to -300.24, 300.34, 
300.43, 300.105 to -106, 300.112, 320.325, 300.328, 300.501 (2012). 

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-343
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-343
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-015
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-015
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-015
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-015
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-015
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-015
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-015
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-015
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-015
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-015
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-015
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-015
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-015
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-015
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-015


R8/08/22│LF Talented and Gifted Program and/or Services** – IGBB 
1-1 

 

Newberg School District 29J 
 
Code: IGBB 
Adopted:  
 

Talented and Gifted Program and/or Services** 
 
The district is committed to an educational program that recognizes, identifies and serves the unique 
strengths and needs of students identified as talented and gifted. Talented and gifted students demonstrate 
exceptional performance when compared to applicable developmental or learning progressions, with 
consideration given for variations in student’s opportunity to learn and to culturally relevant indicators of 
ability. 
 
The Board directs the superintendent to develop a process for identification of talented and gifted students 
in grades K through 12.  

The district will develop a written plan of instruction for talented and gifted students.  

 The district shall submit such plan to the Oregon Department of Education (ODE) as directed. 

The district may also identify and provide programs for students who demonstrate outstanding ability or 
potential in creative ability in using original or nontraditional methods in thinking and producing; 
leadership ability in motivating the performance of others in educational or noneducational settings; and/or 
ability in the visual or performing arts, such as dance, music or art. 

Complaints regarding programs and/or services can be filed in accordance with Board Policy KL – Public 
Complaints, beginning at. The superintendent or designee may choose to convene a committee in making a 
decision.  
 
END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 343.391 - 343.401 
ORS 343.407 - 343.413 

OAR 581-022-2325 
OAR 581-022-2330 

OAR 581-022-2370 
OAR 581-022-2500

 

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-343
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-343
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581


R8/08/22│LF Talented and Gifted Students - Identification** – IGBBA 
1-2 

 

Newberg School District 29J 
 
Code: IGBBA 
Adopted:  
 

Talented and Gifted Students - Identification** 
 
In order to serve talented and gifted (“TAG”) students in grades K through 12, the district directs the 
superintendent or designee to establish an identification process. 

This process of identification shall include at a minimum: 
 
1. Use of evidence-based practices that include a variety of tools and procedures to determine if a 

student demonstrates a pattern of exceptional performance and/or achievement that is relevant to the 
identification of TAG students under ORS 343.395. 

2. Collection and use of multiple modes and methods of qualitative and quantitative evidence to allow 
appropriate members of a student’s identification team to make a determination about the 
identification and eligibility of the students for TAG services, supports and/or programs; with no 
single test or piece of evidence eliminating a student from eligibility. 

3. Use of methods and practices that minimize or seek to eliminate the effects of bias in assessment and 
identification of students from historically underrepresented populations including, but not limited 
to: 

a. Students who are racially/ethnically diverse; 
b. Students experiencing disability; 
c. Students who are culturally and/or linguistically diverse; 
d. Students experiencing poverty; and 
e. Students experiencing high mobility. 

4. Incorporate assessments, tools and procedures that will inform the development of an appropriate 
plan of instruction for students who are identified as TAG and describe how information from the 
assessments, tools and procedures used in the identification for TAG students will be used to support 
development of the plan of instruction. 

5. Identify how the educational record under ORS 326.565 of the student being considered will 
document and reflect the record of the team’s decision and the procedures and data used by the team 
to make the decision.  

The district will provide professional development for staff assigned the responsibility for identification of 
talented and gifted students. 

When a student is identified for TAG, the district shall inform parents of the programs and services 
available to their student and provide an opportunity for parents to provide input to, and discuss TAG 
instruction proposed for their student. The instruction provided shall be designed to accommodate the 
student’s assessed levels of learning and accelerated rates of learning. Parents may request the withdrawal 
of their student from TAG at any time. 



R8/08/22│LF Talented and Gifted Students - Identification** – IGBBA 
2-2 

 

If a parent is dissatisfied with the identification process or placement of their student, they may submit an 
appeal through  with the superintendent or designee. 
 
After exhausting the district’s appeal procedure and receiving the district’s final decision, a parent may 
appeal the decision to the Deputy Superintendent of Public Instruction under Oregon Administrative Rule 
(OAR) 581-002-0001 – 581-002-0023. The district shall provide a copy of the OARs upon request. 
 
END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 343.395 
ORS 343.407 
ORS 343.409 

ORS 343.411 
OAR 581-021-0030 
OAR 581-022-2325 

OAR 581-022-2330 
OAR 581-022-2370 
OAR 581-022-2500

 

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-343
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-343
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-343
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-343
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581


D 
E 

L 
E 

T 
E 

 

HR7/18/19│PH Talented and Gifted – Programs and Services** – IGBBC 
1-2 

 

OSBA Model Sample Policy 
 
Code: IGBBC 
Adopted:  
 

Talented and Gifted – Programs and Services** 
 
A district written plan will be developed for programs and services beyond those normally offered by the 
regular school program. All required written course statements shall identify the academic instructional 
programs and services to be provided which accommodate the assessed levels and accelerated rates of 
learning in identified talented and gifted students. The superintendent will remove any administrative 
barriers that may exist which restrict a student’s access to appropriate services and will develop program 
and service options. [These options may include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 
1. [Early Entrance;] 

2. [Grade Skipping;] 

3. [Ungraded/Multi-age Classes;] 

4. [Cluster Grouping in Regular Classes;] 

5. [Continuous Progress;] 

6. [Cross Grade Grouping;] 

7. [Compacted/Fast-Paced Curriculum;] 

8. [Special Full- or Part-Time Classes;] 

9. [Advanced Placement Classes;] 

10. [Honors Classes;] 

11. [Block Classes;] 

12. [Independent Study;] 

13. [Credit by Examination;] 

14. [Concurrent Enrollment;] 

15. [Mentorship/Internship;] 

16. [Academic Competitions;] 

17. [Magnet Programs/Schools.] 

The Board has established an appeal process for a parent or guardian to utilize if they are dissatisfied with 
the programs and services recommended for their student that has been identified as talented and gifted, 
and wish to request reconsideration. The appeal process is identified in [Board policy KL – Public 



D 
E 

L 
E 

T 
E 

 

HR7/18/19│PH Talented and Gifted – Programs and Services** – IGBBC 
2-2 

 

Complaints**] [administrative regulation IGBBA-AR - Appeal Procedure for Talented and Gifted Student 
Identification and Placement]. 

The Board has established a complaint procedure to utilize if a person who resides in the district or a 
parent or guardian of a student attending school in the district has a complaint regarding the 
appropriateness of programs and services provided for a student identified as talented and gifted. This 
complaint procedure, IGBBC-AR - Complaints Regarding the Talented and Gifted Program, is available at 
the district’s administrative office and on the home page of the district’s website. The complainant may 
file an appeal to the Deputy Superintendent of Public Instruction under Oregon Administrative Rules 
(OAR) 581-002-0001 – 581-002-0023. The district shall provide a copy of these OARs upon request. 
 
END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
OAR 581-022-2325 
OAR 581-022-2330 

OAR 581-022-2370 
OAR 581-022-2500

 

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581


HR8/08/22│LF Expanded Options Program** – IGBHE 
1-5 

 

Newberg School District 29J 
 
Code: IGBHE 
Adopted:  
 

Expanded Options Program** 
 
The Board is committed to providing additional educational options to eligible students enrolled in grades 
11 and 12 to continue or complete their education, to earn concurrent high school and college credits and 
to gain early entry into post-secondary education. The district’s Expanded Options Program (EOP) will 
comply with all requirements of Oregon law (ORS 340) and give priority status to “at-risk” students. 

Eligible Students 

Eligible students may apply to take courses at an eligible post-secondary institution through the Expanded 
Options Program. A student is eligible for the EOP if the student: 

1. Is 16 years of age or older at the time of enrollment in a course under the EOP; 

2. Is in grade 11 or 12 at the time of enrollment in a course under the EOP or has not yet completed the 
required credits to be in grade 11 or 12, but the district has allowed the student to participate in the 
program; 

3. Has developed an educational learning plan; 

4. Has not successfully completed the requirements for a high school diploma. A student who has 
graduated from high school may not participate; and 

5. Is not an exchange student enrolled in a school under a cultural exchange program. 

Student Notification 

Prior to February 15 of each year, the district shall notify all high school students and the parent or 
guardian of students of the EOP for the following school year. The district will notify a transfer high 
school student, or a student returning to high school after dropping out of school, of the EOP if the student 
enrolls after the district has issued the February 15 notice. The district will notify a high school student 
who has officially expressed an intent to participate in the EOP, and the student’s parent or guardian, of 
the student’s eligibility status within 20 business days of the expression of intent. 

It is a priority for the district to provide information about the EOP to high school students who have 
dropped out of school. The district shall establish a process to identify and provide those students with 
information about the program. The district shall send information about the program to the last-known 
address of the family of the student. 

The notice must include the following: 

1. Financial arrangements for tuition, textbooks, equipment and materials; 

2. Available transportation services; 



HR8/08/22│LF Expanded Options Program** – IGBHE 
2-5 

 

3. The effect of enrolling in the EOP on the student’s ability to complete high school graduation 
requirements; 

4. The consequences of failing or not completing a post-secondary course; 

5. Notification that participation in the EOP is contingent on acceptance by an eligible post-secondary 
institution; and 

6. District timelines affecting student eligibility and duplicate course determinations. 

Enrollment Process 

Prior to May 15 of each year, a student who is interested in participating in the EOP shall notify the district 
of the intent to enroll in eligible post-secondary courses during the following school year. A high school 
transfer student or a student returning to high school after dropping out of school has 20 business days 
from the date of enrollment to indicate interest. 

The district shall review with the student and the student’s parent or guardian the student’s current status 
toward meeting all state and district graduation requirements and the applicability of the proposed 
eligible post-secondary course to the remaining graduation requirements. 

A student who intends to participate in the EOP shall develop an educational learning plan in cooperation 
with an advisory support team. An advisory support team may include the student, the student’s parent or 
guardian and a teacher or a counselor. The educational learning plan may include: 

1. The student’s short-term and long-term learning goals and proposed activities; and 

2. The relationship of the eligible post-secondary courses proposed under the EOP and the student’s 
learning goals. 

A student who enrolls in the EOP may not enroll in eligible post-secondary courses for more than the 
equivalent of two academic years. A student who first enrolls in the EOP in grade 12 may not enroll in 
eligible post-secondary courses for more than the equivalent of one academic year. If a student first enrolls 
in an eligible post-secondary course in the middle of the school year, the time of participation shall be 
reduced proportionately. If a student is enrolled in a year-round program and begins each grade in the 
summer session, summer sessions are not counted against the time of participation. 

Duplicate Courses 

The district will establish a process to determine duplicate course designations. The district will notify an 
eligible student and the student’s parent or guardian, of any course the student wishes to take that the 
district determines is a duplicate course, within 20 business days after the student has submitted a list of 
intended courses. 

A student may appeal a duplicate course determination to the Board based on evidence of the scope of the 
course. The Board or designee will issue a decision on the appeal within 30 business days of receipt of the 
appeal. If the appeal is denied by the Board or designee, the student may appeal the district’s 
determination to the Superintendent of Public Instruction or designee under ORS 340.030. 

Annual Credit Hour Cap 



HR8/08/22│LF Expanded Options Program** – IGBHE 
3-5 

 

The number of quarter credit hours that may be awarded by a high school under the EOP is limited to an 
amount equal to the number of students in grades 9 through 12 enrolled in the high school multiplied by a 
factor of 0.33. For example, the cap for a high school with 450 students in grades 9 through 12 would be 
148.5 (450 X 0.33 = 148.5). (The caps must be established separately for each high school.) 

At the district’s discretion, the district may choose to exceed both the individual high school level cap and 
the aggregate district level cap. If the district has more eligible students than are allowed under the credit 
hour cap the district shall establish a process for selecting eligible students for participation in the 
program. The process will give priority for participation to students who are “at risk.” An “at-risk student” 
means: a at-risk student as defined by rules adopted by the State Board of Education if it has adopted rules 
to define an at-risk student. 

If the district has not exceeded the credit hour cap, the district shall ensure that all eligible at-risk students 
are allowed to participate in the EOP and may allow eligible students who are not at-risk to participate in 
the program. 

Post-Secondary Institution Credit 

Prior to beginning an eligible post-secondary course, the district shall notify the student of the number and 
type of credits that the student will be granted upon successful completion of the course. If there is a 
dispute between the district and the student regarding the number or type of credits that the district will or 
has granted to a student for a particular course, the student may appeal the district’s decision to the 
Superintendent or designee1. 

Credits granted to a student shall be counted toward high school graduation requirements and subject area 
requirements of the state and the district. Evidence of successful completion of each course and credits 
granted shall be included in the student’s education record. A student shall provide the district with a copy 
of the student’s grade in each course taken for credit under the EOP. The student’s education record shall 
indicate that the credits were earned at an eligible post-secondary institution. 

Financial Agreement 

The district shall negotiate in good faith a financial agreement with the eligible post-secondary institution 
for the payment of actual instructional costs associated with the student’s enrollment, including tuition and 
fees, textbooks, equipment and materials. 

Waiver 

A district may request an EOP waiver from the Superintendent of Public Instruction2 if compliance with 
the EOP would adversely impact the finances of the district or if all conditions identified in ORS 
340.083(1)(b) exist. 

Student Reimbursement 

Students are not eligible for any state student financial aid for college coursework, but students may apply 
to the district for reimbursement for any textbooks, fees, equipment or materials purchased by the student 

                                                 
1 ORS 340.040(3) allows a student to appeal through an “appeals process adopted by the school district board.” 

2 Oregon Department of Education 



HR8/08/22│LF Expanded Options Program** – IGBHE 
4-5 

 

that are required for an eligible post-secondary course. All textbooks, fees, equipment and materials 
provided to a student and paid for by the district are the property of the district. 

Transportation Services 

The district may provide transportation services to eligible students who attend eligible post-secondary 
institutions within the education service district boundaries of which the district is a component district. 

Special Education Services 

The district of an eligible student participating in the EOP shall be responsible for providing any required 
special education and related services to the student. If a post-secondary institution intends to provide 
special education and related services to an EOP participant, the institution shall enter into a written 
contract with the district of the student. 

The contract shall include the following at a minimum: 

1. Allowance for the student to remain in the program during the pendency of any special education 
due process hearing unless the parent or guardian and district agree otherwise; 

2. Immediate notification to the district if the institution suspects that a student participating in the 
program may have a disability and requires special education or related services; 

3. Immediate notification to the district if the student engaged in conduct that may lead to suspension 
or expulsion; and 

4. Immediate notification to the district of any complaint made by the parent or guardian of the student 
regarding the student’s participation in the program at the institution. 

District Alternative Programs 

The EOP does not affect any program, agreement or plan that existed on January 1, 2006, between the 
district and a post-secondary institution, which has been continued or renewed. 

Any new program, agreement or plan that is developed after January 1, 2006, and is intended to provide 
access for public high school students to a post-secondary course, may be initiated at the discretion of the 
district and the post-secondary institution. 

END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 329.485 
ORS 332.072 

ORS 336.615 - 336.665 
ORS Chapter 340

 
Every Student Succeeds Act, 20 U.S.C. §§ 1111-1605; §§ 3111-3203 (2018). 
McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act, Subtitle VII-B, reauthorized by Title IX-A of Every Student Succeeds Act, 42 
U.S.C. §§ 11431-11435 (2018). 
Americans with Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101-12112 (2018); 29 C.F.R. Part 1630 (2022); 28 C.F.R. Part 35 (2022). 
Americans with Disabilities Act Amendments Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101-12133 (2018). 
Rehabilitation Act, 29 U.S.C. §§ 791, 794 (2018). 
Title IX of the Education Amendments, 20 U.S.C. §§ 1681-1683, 1701, 1703-1705, 1720 (2018). 

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-329
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-336
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-340


HR9/28/17│RS Expanded Options Program** – IGBHE 
5-5 

 

Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in Education Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance, 34 C.F.R. 
Part 106 (2022). 
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, as amended, 20 U.S.C. §§ 1400-1401, 1411-1416 (2018); 34 C.F.R. Part 300 
(2022). 
 



R8/08/22│LF 
 

Interscholastic Activities** – IGDJ 
1-1 

 

Newberg School District 29J 
 
Code: IGDJ 
Adopted:  
 

Interscholastic Activities** 
 
The district and its schools may only be members of and pay fees, if any, to a voluntary organization that 
administers interscholastic activities or that facilitates the scheduling and programming of interscholastic 
activities if the organization: 

1. Implements and adheres to equity focused policies that: 

a. Address the use of derogatory or inappropriate names, insults, verbal assaults, profanity, or 
ridicule that occurs at an interscholastic activity, including by spectators of the interscholastic 
activity; 

b. Prohibit discrimination; 
c. Permit a student to wear religious clothing in accordance with the student’s sincerely held 

religious belief and consistent with any safety and health requirements; and 
d. Balance the health, safety, and reasonable accommodation needs of participants on an activity-

by-activity basis; 

2. Maintains a transparent complaint process that: 

a. Has a reporting system to allow participants of interscholastic activities or members of the 
public to make complaints about student, coach, or spectator behavior; 

b. Responds to a complaint made within 48 hours of the complaint being received; and 
c. Resolves a complaint within 30 days of the complaint being received unless the organization 

determines that there is good cause to extend the timeline for resolving the complaint; 

3. Develops and implements a system of sanctions against schools, students, coaches, and spectators if 
a complaint is verified; and 

4. Performs an annual survey of students and their parents to understand and respond to potential 
violations of equity focused policies or other discrimination. 

END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 326.051 
ORS 332.075(1)(e) 
ORS 332.107 
ORS 339.450 - 339.460 

OAR 581-015-2255 
OAR 581-021-0045 – 0049 
OAR 581-022-2308(2) 
OAR 581-026-0005 

OAR 581-026-0700 
OAR 581-026-0705 
OAR 581-026-0710

 
Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. §§ 1681-1683 (2018); Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in 
Education Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance, 34 C.F.R. Part 106 (2022). 
Montgomery v. Bd. of Educ., 188 Or. App. 63 (2003). 
Senate Bill 1522 (2022). 

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-326
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581


R8/08/22│RS Academic Achievement** – IK 
1-2 

 

Newberg School District 29J 
 
Code: IK 
Adopted:  
 

Academic Achievement** 
 
The Board believes it is important that teachers have as much accurate knowledge of student achievement 
as possible to assess students’ needs and growth; thus, a sharing of information among parent, teacher and 
student is essential. 
 
The district shall ensure that all students have the opportunity to demonstrate progress toward mastery of 
the knowledge and skills of the student’s current grade level or course content level. Students who have 
not yet met or who exceed all of the standards at any grade level, will be offered additional services or 
alternative educational or public school options. 
 
The Board directs staff to follow these guidelines in measuring and determining student progress: 
 
1. Parents and students may be informed of their student’s progress toward achieving the academic 

content standards, including but not limited to: 

a. Information on progress in each subject area to meet or exceed the academic content standards 
at the student’s current grade level or course content level, including major goals used to 
determine the information; 

b. Specific evidence of student progress toward mastery of a continuum of academic knowledge 
and skills (academic content standards) of a subject area, upon request from a parent; 

c. Student scores on all state and local assessments indicating any of the requirements that have 
been waived for the district or the individual and time periods for the waiver; and 

d. Student progress toward completion of diploma requirements to parents of students in grades 
9-12, including credits earned, demonstration of extended application and demonstration of the 
Essential Skills. 

2. Parents will be alerted and conferred with as soon as possible when a student’s performance or 
attitude becomes unsatisfactory or shows marked or sudden deterioration; 

3. Grades and/or portfolio content assessment will be based upon academic performance and will not 
include student attitude. Grades will not be used for disciplinary purposes. Absenteeism or 
misconduct shall not be the sole criterion for the reduction of a student’s grade. 

4. At comparable levels, the school system will strive for consistency in grading and reporting except 
when this consistency is inappropriate for certain classes or certain students; 

5. When no grades are given but the student is evaluated in terms of progress, the school staff will’’ 
show whether the student is achieving course requirements at the student’s current grade level; 

6. The staff will take particular care to explain to students the meaning of marks and symbols used to 
reflect student performance. 

END OF POLICY 



R8/08/22│RS Academic Achievement** – IK 
2-2 

 

 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 107.154 
ORS 329.485 

ORS 343.295 
OAR 581-021-0022 

OAR 581-022-2260 
OAR 581-022-2270

 

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-107
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-329
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-343
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-021
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-022
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-022


CR8/08/22│LF Graduation Requirements** – IKF 
1-6 

 

Newberg School District 29J 
 
Code: IKF 
Adopted:  
 

Graduation Requirements** 
 
The Board establishes graduation requirements for awarding of a high school diploma, a modified 
diploma, an extended diploma and an alternative certificate which meet or exceed state requirements. 

A student may satisfy graduation requirements in less than four years. The district will award a diploma to 
a student fulfilling graduation requirements in less than four years if consent is given by the student’s 
parent or guardian or by the student if the student is 18 years of age or older or emancipated. 

If the district requires diploma requirements beyond the state requirements, the district shall grant a waiver 
for those requirements to any student who, at any time from grade 9 to 12, was: 

1. A foster child1; 

2. Homeless; 

3. A runaway; 

4. A child in a military family covered by the Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunity for 
Military Children; 

5. A child of a migrant worker; or 

6. Enrolled in the Youth Corrections Education Program or the Juvenile Detention Education Program. 

For any student identified above, the district shall accept any credits earned by the student in an 
educational program2 in this state, applying those credits toward the state requirements for a diploma if the 
credits satisfied those requirements in that educational program in this state. 

Diploma 

A high school diploma will be awarded to students in grades 9 through 12 who complete a minimum of 24 
credits, which include at least: 

1. Three credits in mathematics (shall include one unit at the Algebra I level and two units that are at a 
level higher than Algebra I); 

2. Four credits in language arts (shall include the equivalent of one unit in written composition); 

                                                 
1 As defined in ORS 30.297. 

2 “Educational program in this state” means an educational program that is provided by a school district, a public charter school, 
the Youth Corrections Education Program or the Juvenile Detention Program, or funded as provided by ORS 343.243 for 
students in a long term care or treatment facility described in ORS 343.962 or a hospital identified in ORS 343.261. 



CR8/08/22│LF Graduation Requirements** – IKF 
2-6 

 

3. Three credits in science; 

4. Three credits in social sciences (including history, geography and economics (including personal 
finance)); 

5. One credit in health education; 

6. One credit in physical education; and 

7. Three credits in career and technical education, the arts or world languages3 (units shall be earned in 
any one or a combination). 

The district shall offer students credit options provided the method for obtaining such credits is described 
in the student’s personal education plan and the credit is earned by meeting requirements described in 
Oregon Administrative Rule (OAR) 581-022-2025. 

To receive a diploma, in addition to credit requirements outlined in OAR 581-022-2000, a student must: 

1. Develop an education plan and build an education profile; 

2. Demonstrate extended application through a collection of evidence; and 

3. Participate in career-related learning experiences. 

Modified Diploma 

A modified diploma will be awarded only to students who have demonstrated the inability to meet the full 
set of academic standards adopted by the State Board of Education for a diploma while receiving 
reasonable modifications and accommodations. A modified diploma may only be awarded to a student 
who meets the eligibility criteria below and other criteria, if applicable, outlined in OAR 581-022-2010(3): 

1. Has a documented history of an inability to maintain grade level achievement due to significant 
learning and instructional barriers; or 

2. Has a documented history of a medical condition that creates a barrier to achievement. 

Having met the above eligibility criteria, a modified diploma will be awarded to students who, while in 
grade nine through completion of high school, complete 24 credits which shall include: 

1. Three credits in language arts; 

2. Two credits in mathematics; 

3. Two credits in science; 

4. Two credits in social sciences (which may include history, civics, geography and economics 
(including personal finance)); 

                                                 
3 “World language” includes sign language, heritage language and languages other than a student’s primary language. 



CR8/08/22│LF Graduation Requirements** – IKF 
3-6 

 

5. One credit in health education; 

6. One credit in physical education; and 

7. One credit in career technical education, the arts or world languages (units may be earned in any one 
or a combination). 

Students may earn additional credits to earn a modified diploma pursuant to OAR 581-022-2010. 

In addition to credit requirements as outlined in OAR 581-022-2010, a student must: 

1. Develop an education plan and build an education profile; and 

2. Demonstrate extended application through a collection of evidence. 

Districts may make modifications to the assessment for students who seek a modified diploma when the 
following conditions are met: 

1. For a student on an individualized education program (IEP) or Section 504 plan, any modifications 
to work samples must be consistent with the requirements established in the IEP or 504 plan. 
Modifications include practices and procedures that compromise the intent of the assessment through 
a change in learning expectations, construct, or content that is to be measured, grade level standard, 
or measured outcome of the assessment. This means that IEP or 504 school teams responsible for 
approving modifications for a student’s assessment may adjust the administration of the assessment 
and/or the assessment’s achievement standard; 

2. For a student not on an IEP or 504 plan, any modifications to work samples must have been 
provided to the student during their instruction in the content area to be assessed and in the year in 
which the student is being assessed, and modifications must be approved by the school team that is 
responsible for monitoring the student’s progress toward the modified diploma. 

Students not on an IEP or a Section 504 Plan may not receive a modified Smarter Balanced assessment. 

A student’s school team shall decide that a student should work toward a modified diploma no earlier than 
the end of grade six and no later than two years before the student’s anticipated exit from high school. 

A student’s school team may decide to revise a modified diploma decision. 

A student’s school team may decide that a student who was not previously working toward a modified 
diploma should work toward one when the student is less than two years from anticipated exit from high 
school if the documented history has changed. 

Beginning in grade five or beginning after a documented history to qualify for a modified diploma, the 
district shall annually provide to the parents or guardians of the student, information about the availability 
and requirements of a modified diploma. 

Extended Diploma 

An extended diploma will be awarded only to students who have demonstrated the inability to meet the 
full set of academic content standards adopted by the State Board of Education for a diploma while 
receiving modifications and accommodations. To be eligible for an extended diploma, a student must: 



CR8/08/22│LF Graduation Requirements** – IKF 
4-6 

 

1. While in grade nine through completion of high school, complete 12 credits, which may not include 
more than six credits in a self-contained special education classroom and will include: 

a. Two credits in mathematics; 
b. Two credits in language arts; 
c. Two credits in science; 
d. Three credits in history, geography, economics or civics; 
e. One credit in health; 
f. One credit in physical education; and 
g. One credit in the arts or a world language. 

2. Have a documented history of: 

a. An inability to maintain grade level achievement due to significant learning and instructional 
barriers;  

b. A medical condition that creates a barrier to achievement; or 
c. A change in the student’s ability to participate in grade level activities as a result of a serious 

illness or injury that occurred after grade eight. 

Beginning in grade five or beginning after a documented history to qualify for an extended diploma, the 
district shall annually provide to the parents or guardians of the student, information about the availability 
and requirements of an extended diploma. 

Alternative Certificates 

Alternative certificates will be awarded to students who do not satisfy the requirements for a diploma, a 
modified diploma, or an extended diploma if the students meet minimum requirements established by the 
district. 

Beginning in grade five or beginning after a documented history to qualify for an alternative certificate, 
the district shall annually provide to the parents or guardians of the student, information about the 
availability and requirements of an alternative certificate. 

Other District Responsibilities 

The district will ensure that students have onsite access to the appropriate resources to achieve a diploma, 
a modified diploma, an extended diploma, or an alternative certificate at each high school. The district will 
provide literacy instruction to all students until graduation. 

The district may not deny a student the opportunity to pursue a diploma with more stringent requirements 
than a modified diploma or an extended diploma for the sole reason the student has the documented 
history listed under the above modified diploma or extended diploma requirements. 

The district may award a modified diploma or an extended diploma to a student only upon the written 
consent of a student who is emancipated or who has reached the age of 18 at the time the modified or 
extended diploma is awarded, or the student’s parent or guardian. The district shall receive the written 
consent during the school year in which the modified diploma or the extended diploma is awarded. 

A student shall have the opportunity to satisfy the requirements for a modified diploma, an extended 
diploma or an alternative certificate in the later of 4 years after starting the ninth grade, or until the student 



CR8/08/22│LF Graduation Requirements** – IKF 
5-6 

 

reaches the age of 21 if the student is entitled to a public education until the age of 21 under state or 
federal law. 

A student may satisfy the requirements for a modified diploma, an extended diploma or an alternative 
certificate in less than four years but not less than three years. To satisfy the requirements for a modified 
diploma, an extended diploma or an alternative certificate in less than four years, the student’s parent or 
guardian or a student who is emancipated or has reached the age of 18 must provide written consent which 
clearly states the parent, guardian or student is waiving the fourth year and/or years until the student 
reaches the age of 21. A copy of the consent will be forwarded to the district superintendent who will 
annually report to the Superintendent of Public Instruction the number of such consents. 

A student who qualifies to receive or receives a modified diploma, an extended diploma, or an alternative 
certificate shall have the option of participating in a high school graduation ceremony with the student’s 
class. 

A student who receives a modified diploma, an extended diploma, or an alternative certificate shall have 
access to instructional hours, hours of transition services and hours of other services that are designed to 
meet the unique needs of the student and when added together provide a total number of hours of 
instruction and services that equals at least the total number of instructional hours that are required to be 
provided to students who are attending a public high school. 

The district will award to students with disabilities a document certifying successful completion of 
program requirements. No document issued to students with disabilities educated in full or in part in a 
special education program shall indicate that the document is issued by such a program. When a student 
who has an IEP completes high school, the district will give the student an individualized summary of 
performance. 

Eligible students with disabilities are entitled to a free appropriate public education (FAPE) until the age of 
21, even if they have earned a modified diploma, an extended diploma, an alternative certificate or 
completion of a General Education Development document. The continuance of services for students with 
disabilities for a modified diploma, extended diploma or alternative certificate is contingent on the IEP 
team determining the student’s continued eligibility and special education services are needed. 

Students and their parents will be notified of graduation and diploma requirements. 

The district may not deny a diploma to a student who has opted out of statewide assessments if the student 
is able to satisfy all other requirements for the diploma. Students may opt-out of the Smarter Balanced or 
alternate Oregon Extended Assessment by completing the Oregon Department of Education’s Opt-out 
Form4 and submitting the form to the district. 

The district will issue a high school diploma pursuant to Oregon law (ORS 332.114) to a veteran if the 
veteran resides within the boundaries of the district or is an Oregon resident and attended a high school of 
the district, or to a deceased veteran, upon request from a representative of the veteran, if the deceased 
veteran resided within the boundaries of the district at the time of death or was an Oregon resident at the 
time of death and attended a high school of the district. 

                                                 
4 Oregon Department of Education page for: 30-day notice and opt-out form 

https://www.oregon.gov/ode/educator-resources/assessment/Pages/Assessment-Administration.aspx


CR8/08/22│LF Graduation Requirements** – IKF 
6-6 

 

The act of student-initiated test impropriety is prohibited. A student that participates in an act of student-
initiated test impropriety will be subject to discipline. “Student-initiated test impropriety” means student 
conduct that is inconsistent with the Test Administration Manual or accompanying guidance; or results in a 
score that is invalid. 

END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 329.007 
ORS 329.045 
ORS 329.451 
ORS 329.479 
ORS 332.107 
ORS 332.114 
ORS 336.585 
ORS 336.590 

ORS 339.115 
ORS 339.505 
ORS 343.295 
 
OAR 581-021-0009 
OAR 581-022-0102 
OAR 581-022-2000 
OAR 581-022-2005 

OAR 581-022-2010 
OAR 581-022-2015 
OAR 581-022-2020 
OAR 581-022-2025 
OAR 581-022-2030 
OAR 581-022-2115 
OAR 581-022-2120 
OAR 581-022-2505

 
Test Administration Manual, published by the OREGON DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION. 
 
Senate Bill 1522 (2022). 

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-329
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-329
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-329
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-329
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-336
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-336
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-343
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581


HR8/08/22│LF District Improvement Program – IMB 
1-1 

 

Newberg School District 29J 
 
Code: IMB 
Adopted:  
 

District Improvement Program 
 
The Board recognizes that the key work of school boards is to establish and promote a clear vision of 
student achievement as the top priority of the district. The district will accomplish this through continued 
evaluation and improvement of its programs. 
 
The superintendent will ensure development and implementation of a comprehensive, collaborative 
planning and self-evaluation process that in the district’s goal setting and continuous improvement 
program efforts. 
 
The district’s program will be consistent with Oregon Department of Education requirements and reflected 
in school and district continuous improvement plans. 
 
The district will, in striving for continuous improvement, annually review district and individual school 
data on student achievement and prioritize, allocate and realign resources as necessary. The district will 
annually review and report test results and progress to the community.  
 
The superintendent will develop administrative regulations as needed to implement this policy. 
 
END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 329.095 ORS 332.107 OAR 581-022-2250
 

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-329
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581


HR8/08/22│LF Compulsory Attendance** – JEA 
1-2 

 

Newberg School District 29J 
 
Code: JEA 
Adopted:  
 

Compulsory Attendance** 
 
Except when exempt by Oregon law, all children between ages 6 and 18 who have not completed the 12th 
grade are required to regularly attend a public, full-time school during the entire school term. Persons 
having legal control of a child between the ages 6 and 18, who has not completed the 12th grade, are 
required to have the child attend and maintain the child in regular attendance during the entire school term. 
 
All children five years of age who have been enrolled in a public school are required to attend regularly 
while enrolled in the public school. Persons having legal control of a child, who is five years of age and 
has enrolled the child in a public school, are required to have the child attend and maintain the child in 
regular attendance during the school term. 
 
Attendance supervisors shall monitor and report any violation of the compulsory attendance law to the 
superintendent or designee.  
 
The district will develop procedures for issuing a citation. 
 
A parent who is not supervising their child by requiring school attendance may also be in violation of 
Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 163.577(1)(c); failing to supervise a child is a Class A violation. 
 
Exemptions from Compulsory School Attendance 
 
In the following cases, children shall not be required to attend public, full-time schools: 
 
1. Children being taught in a private or parochial school in courses of study usually taught in 

kindergarten through grade 12 in the public schools, and in attendance for a period equivalent to that 
required of students attending public schools. 

2. Children proving to the Board’s satisfaction that they have acquired equivalent knowledge to that 
acquired in the courses of study taught in kindergarten through grade 12 in the public schools. 

3. Children who have received a high school diploma or a modified diploma. 

4. Children being taught, by a private teacher, the courses of study usually taught in kindergarten 
through grade 12 in the public school for a period equivalent to that required of students attending 
public schools. 

5. Children being educated in the home by a parent, guardian or private teacher. 

6. Children whose sixth birthday occurred on or before September 1 immediately preceding the 
beginning of the current school year, if the parent or guardian notified the child’s resident district in 
writing that the parent or guardian is delaying the enrollment of their child for one school year to 
better meet the child’s needs for cognitive, social or physical development, as determined by the 
parent or guardian. 



HR8/08/22│LF Compulsory Attendance** – JEA 
2-2 

 

7. Children who are present in the United States on a nonimmigrant visa and who are attending a 
private, accredited English language learner program in preparation for attending a private high 
school or college. 

8. Children excluded from attendance as provided by law. 

9. Children who are eligible military children1 are exempt up to 10 days after the date of military 
transfer or pending transfer indicated in the official military order. 

10. An exemption may be granted to the parent or guardian of any child 16 or 17 years of age who is 
lawfully employed full-time, or who is lawfully employed part-time and enrolled in school, a 
community college or an alternative education program as defined in ORS 336.615. 

11. An exemption may be granted to any child who is an emancipated minor or who has initiated the 
procedure for emancipation under ORS 419B.550 - 419B.558. 

END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 153.018 
ORS 163.577 
ORS 339.010 - 339.095 
ORS 339.139 

ORS 339.990 
ORS 807.065 
ORS 807.066 
OAR 581-021-0026 

OAR 581-021-0029 
OAR 581-021-0076 
OAR 581-021-0077

 

                                                 
1 “Military child” means a child who is in a military family covered by the Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunity for 
Military Children, as determined under rules adopted by the State Board of Education. 

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-153
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-163
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-807
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-807
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581


R8/08/22│LF Use of Restraint or Seclusion** – JGAB 
1-4 

 

Newberg School District 29J 
 
Code: JGAB 
Adopted:  
 

Use of Restraint or Seclusion** 
 
The Board is dedicated to the development and application of best practices within the district’s public 
educational/behavioral programs. The Board establishes this policy and its administrative regulation to 
define the circumstances that must exist and the requirements that must be met prior to, during, and after 
the use of restraint or seclusion as an intervention with district students. 
 
The use of the following types of restraint on a student in the district is prohibited: 
 
1. Chemical restraint. 

2. Mechanical restraint. 

3. Prone restraint. 

4. Supine restraint. 

5. Any restraint that involves the intentional and nonincidental use of a solid object1, including a wall 
or the floor, to impede a student’s movement, unless the restraint is necessary to prevent an 
imminent life-threatening injury or to gain control of a weapon. 

6. Any restraint that places, or creates a risk of placing, pressure on a student’s mouth, neck or throat. 

7. Any restraint that places, or creates a risk of placing, pressure on a student’s mouth, unless the 
restraint is necessary for the purpose of extracting a body part from a bite. 

8. Any restraint that impedes, or creates a risk of impeding, breathing. 

9. Any restraint that involves the intentional placement of the hands, feet, elbow, knee or any object on 
a student’s neck, throat, genitals or other intimate parts. 

10. Any restraint that causes pressure to be placed, or creates a risk of causing pressure to be placed, on 
the stomach or back by a knee, foot or elbow bone. 

11. Any action designed for the primary purpose of inflicting pain. 

The use of a seclusion cell is prohibited. 

Restraint or seclusion may not be used for discipline, punishment, retaliation or convenience of staff, 
contractors or volunteers of the district. 

 

                                                 
1 The use of a solid object, including furniture, a wall, or the floor, by district staff performing a restraint is not prohibited if the 
object is used for the staff’s own stability or support while performing the restraint and not as a mechanism to apply pressure 
directly to the student’s body. 

 



R8/08/22│LF Use of Restraint or Seclusion** – JGAB 
2-4 

 

Restraint may be imposed on a student in the district only under the following circumstances: 

1. The student’s behavior imposes a reasonable risk of imminent and substantial physical or bodily 
injury to the student or others; and 

2. Less restrictive interventions would not be effective. 

Seclusion may be used on a student in the district only under the following circumstances: 

1. The student’s behavior imposes a reasonable risk of imminent and serious bodily injury to the 
student or others; and 

2. Less restrictive interventions would not be effective. 

If restraint or seclusion is used on a student, by trained staff or other staff available in the case of an 
emergency when trained staff are not immediately available due to the unforeseeable nature of the 
emergency, e.g., teacher, administrator, it will be used only for as long as the student’s behavior poses a 
reasonable risk of imminent and substantial physical or bodily injury to the student or others and less 
restrictive interventions would not be effective. Students will be continuously monitored by staff for the 
duration of the restraint or seclusion. 

Definitions 

1. “Restraint” means the restriction of a student’s actions or movements by holding the student or using 
pressure or other means. 

“Restraint” does not include: 

a. Holding a student’s hand or arm to escort the student safely and without the use of force from 
one area to another;  

b. Assisting a student to complete a task if the student does not resist the physical contact; or 
c. Providing reasonable intervention with the minimal exertion of force necessary if the 

intervention does not include a restraint prohibited under Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 
339.288 and the intervention is necessary to: 

(1) Break up a physical fight; 
(2) Interrupt a student’s impulsive behavior that threatens the student’s immediate safety, 

including running in front of a vehicle or climbing on unsafe structures or objects; or 
(3) Effectively protect oneself or another from an assault, injury or sexual contact with the 

minimum physical contact necessary for protection. 

2. “Seclusion” means the involuntary confinement of a student alone in a room from which the student 
is physically prevented from leaving. Seclusion includes, but is not limited to, the involuntary 
confinement of a student alone in a room with a closed door, whether the door is locked or unlocked. 

“Seclusion” does not include the removal of a student for a short period of time to provide the 
student with an opportunity to regain self-control if the student is in a setting from which the student 
is not physically prevented from leaving, or a student being left alone in a room with a closed door 
for a brief period of time if the student is left alone for a purpose that is unrelated to the student’s 
behavior. 

3. “Seclusion cell” means a freestanding, self-contained unit that is used to isolate the student from 
other students or physically prevent a student from leaving the unit or cause the student to believe 
that the student is physically prevented from leaving the unit. 



R8/08/22│LF Use of Restraint or Seclusion** – JGAB 
3-4 

 

4. “Serious bodily injury” means any significant impairment of the physical condition of a person, as 
determined by qualified medical personnel, whether self-inflicted or inflicted by someone else. 

5. “Substantial physical or bodily injury” means any impairment of the physical condition of a person 
that requires some form of medical treatment. 

6. “Mechanical restraint” means a device used to restrict the movement of a student or the movement 
or normal function of a portion of the body of a student. 

“Mechanical restraint” does not include: 

a. A protective or stabilizing device ordered by a licensed physician; or 
b. A vehicle safety restraint when used as intended during the transport of a student in a moving 

vehicle. 

7. “Chemical restraint” means a drug or medication that is used on a student to control behavior or 
restrict freedom of movement that is not prescribed by a licensed physician or other qualified health 
professional acting under the professional’s scope of practice for standard treatment of the student’s 
medical or psychiatric condition; and administered as prescribed by a licensed physician or other 
qualified health professional acting under the professional’s scope of practice. 

8. “Prone restraint” means a restraint in which a student is held face down on the floor. 

9. “Supine restraint” means a restraint in which a student is held face up on the floor. 

Any student being restrained or secluded within the district whether in an emergency or as a part of a plan 
shall be constantly monitored by staff for the duration of the intervention. Any room used for seclusion of 
a student must meet the standards as outlined in Oregon Administrative Rule (OAR) 581-021-0568. 
 
The district shall utilize the MANDT training program of restraint or seclusion for use in the district. As 
required by state regulation, the selected program shall be one approved by the Oregon Department of 
Education (ODE) and include, but not limited to, positive behavior support, conflict prevention, de-
escalation and crisis response techniques. Any program selected by the district must be in compliance with 
state and federal law with respect to the use of restraint and seclusion. 
 
An annual review of the use of restraint and seclusion during the preceding school year shall be completed 
and submitted to ODE to ensure compliance with district policies and procedures. 
 
The results of the review and annual report shall be documented and shall include at a minimum: 
 
1. The total number of incidents involving restraint; 

2. The total number of incidents involving seclusion; 

3. The total number of seclusions in a locked room; 

4. The total number of students placed in restraint; 

5. The total number of students placed in seclusion; 

6. The total number of incidents that resulted in injuries or death to students or staff as a result of the 
use of restraint or seclusion; 

7. The total number of students placed in restraint or seclusion more than 10 times in a school year and 
an explanation of what steps have been taken by the district to decrease the use of restraint and 
seclusion for each student; 



R8/08/22│LF Use of Restraint or Seclusion** – JGAB 
4-4 

 

8. The total number of restraint or seclusion incidents carried out by untrained individuals; 

9. The demographic characteristics2 of all students upon whom restraint or seclusion was imposed; 

10. The total number of rooms available for use by the district for seclusion of a student and a 
description of the dimensions and design of the rooms. 

This annual report shall be made available to the public at the district’s main office and on the district’s 
website, and to the Board. 
 
At least once each school year the parents and guardians of students of the district shall be notified about 
how to access the report. 
 
The district shall investigate all complaints regarding the use of restraint and/or seclusion practices 
according to the procedures outlined in Board policy KL - Public Complaints and KL-AR - Public 
Complaint Procedure. The complaint procedure is available at the district’s administrative office and is 
available on the home page of the district’s website. 
 
The complainant, whether an organization or an individual, may appeal a district’s final decision to the 
Oregon Department of Education pursuant to OAR 581-002-0001 - 581-002-0023. 
 
The superintendent shall develop administrative regulations to carry out the requirements set forth in this 
policy and to meet any additional requirements established by law related to the use, reporting, and written 
documentation of the use of restraint or seclusion by district staff. 
 
END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 161.205 
ORS 339.250 
ORS 339.285 
ORS 339.288 
ORS 339.291 
ORS 339.294 
ORS 339.297 

ORS 339.300 
ORS 339.303 
 
OAR 581-021-0061 
OAR 581-021-0550 
OAR 581-021-0553 
OAR 581-021-0556 

OAR 581-021-0563 
OAR 581-021-0566 
OAR 581-021-0568 
OAR 581-021-0569 
OAR 581-021-0570 
OAR 581-022-2267 
OAR 581-022-2370

 

                                                 
2 Including race, ethnicity, gender, disability status, migrant status, English proficiency and status as economically 
disadvantaged, unless the demographic information would reveal personally identifiable information about an individual 
student. 

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-161
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581


 
HR8/08/22│SL/LF 

Student Health Services and Requirements** – JHC 
1-2 

 

Newberg School District 29J 
 
Code: JHC 
Adopted:  
 

Student Health Services and Requirements** 
 
Although the district’s primary responsibility is to educate students, the students’ health and general 
welfare is also an important Board responsibility. The Board believes school programs should be 
conducted in a manner that protects and enhances student and employee health and is consistent with good 
health practices. 

The district shall provide: 
 
1. One registered nurse or school nurse for every 125 medically fragile students; 

2. One registered nurse or school nurse or one licensed practical nurse under the supervision of a 
registered nurse or school nurse for each nursing-dependent student; and 

3. One registered nurse or school nurse for every 225 medically complex students. 

The district may use the most cost effective means available to meet the above requirements. 

The district shall maintain a prevention-oriented health services program which provides: 

1. Pertinent health information on the students, as required by Oregon statutes or rules; 

2. Health appraisal to include screening for possible vision or hearing problems; 

3. Health counseling for students and parents, when appropriate; 

4. Health care and first-aid assistance that are appropriately supervised and isolate the sick or injured 
child from the student body; 

5. Control and prevention of communicable diseases as required by Oregon Health Authority, Public 
Health Division, and the county health department; 

6. Assistance for students in taking prescription and/or nonprescription medication according to 
established district procedures; 

7. Services for students who are medically fragile or have special health care needs; 

8. Integration of school health services with school health education programs. 

The Board directs its district health staff to coordinate with health personnel from other public agencies in 
matters pertaining to health instruction or the general health of students and employees. 
 



 
HR8/08/22│SL/LF 

Student Health Services and Requirements** – JHC 
2-2 

 

In accordance with the requirements of federal law, the district recognizes its responsibility to notify 
parents in advance of any nonemergency, invasive physical examination1 or screening that is required as 
condition of attendance; administered and scheduled by the school in advance; and not necessary to protect 
the immediate health and safety of the student, or of other students. Notification will be provided at least 
annually at the beginning of the school year or when enrolling students for the first time in school and will 
include the specific or approximate dates during the school year when such activities are scheduled or 
expected to be scheduled. 
 
Procedures shall be developed and implemented to carry out this policy. All district employees will be 
apprised of their responsibilities in this area. Parents shall have the opportunity to request their students be 
exempt from participation in vision or hearing screening. The district will abide by those requests. 
 
END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 329.025 
ORS 336.201 

ORS 336.211 
OAR 581-022-2050 

OAR 581-022-2220 
OAR 581-022-2225

 
Protection of Pupil Rights, 20 U.S.C. § 1232h (2018); Student Rights in Research, Experimental Programs and Testing, 34 
C.F.R. Part 98 (2022). 
Every Student Succeeds Act, 20 U.S.C. § 7928 (2018). 
Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, 20 U.S.C. § 1232g (2018). 

                                                 
1 The term “invasive physical examination,” as defined by law, means any medical examination that involves the exposure of 
private body parts, or any act during such examination that includes incision, insertion, or injection into the body, but does not 
include a hearing, vision or scoliosis screening. The term does not include any physical examination or screening that is 
permitted or required by state law, including physical examinations or screenings that are permitted without parental 
notification. 

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-329
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-336
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-336
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581


HR8/08/22│LF Public Records Request** – KBA 
1-2 

 

Newberg School District 29J 
 
Code: KBA 
Adopted:  
 

Public Records Request** 
 
A request to inspect or receive a copy of a public record shall be in writing and will be presented to the 
district office. 

A “public record” includes any writing that contains information relating to the conduct of the public’s 
business, prepared, owned, used or retained by the district regardless of physical form or characteristics, 
unless otherwise exempted by law.1 “Writing” means handwriting, typewriting, printing, photographing 
and every means of recording, including letters, words, pictures, sounds, or symbols or combination 
thereof and all papers, maps, files, facsimiles or electronic recordings. Public record does not include any 
writing that does not relate to the conduct of the public’s business and that is contained on a privately 
owned computer.2 

All such information will be made available to individuals with disabilities in an accessible format, upon 
request and with appropriate advanced notice. Auxiliary aids and services available to ensure equally 
effective communications to qualified persons with disabilities may include large print, Braille, audio 
recordings, readers, assistance in locating materials or other equally effective accommodations. 

The Board supports the right of the people to know about programs and services of their schools and will 
make reasonable efforts to disseminate information. Each principal is authorized to use available means to 
keep parents and others in the particular school’s community informed about the school’s program and 
activities. 

The Board reserves the right to establish a fee schedule which will reasonably reimburse the district for the 
actual cost of making public records available pursuant to law. The district will not be obligated to 
complete a request for which the requester has not paid the fee as permitted by state law. There will be no 
additional charge for auxiliary aids and services provided for persons with disabilities. 

Employee and volunteer personal residential addresses, personal electronic mail addresses, social security 
numbers, dates of birth and personal telephone or cellular numbers, and other information listed in Oregon 
Revised Statute (ORS) 192.355 as exempt, contained in personnel records maintained by the district are 
exempt from public disclosure pursuant to ORS 192.363 - 368 and ORS 192.355(3). District electronic 
mail addresses assigned by the district to district employees are not exempt. This exemption does not 
apply to a substitute teacher, as defined in ORS 342.815, when requested by a professional education 
association of which the substitute teacher may be a member.  

                                                 
 
1 There are multiple definitions for “public record” in ORS 192. This definition comes from ORS 192.311 and applies to the 
inspection of records. 

2 In accordance with Bialostosky v. Cummings, 319 Or. App. 352 (2022), an individual board member may be considered a 
public body for public record purposes. Consequently, records created and retained solely by individual board members may be 
considered public records. 



HR8/08/22│LF Public Records Request** – KBA 
2-2 

 

The district will not disclose the identification badge or card of an employee without the employee’s 
written consent if the badge or card contains the employee’s photograph and the badge or card was 
prepared solely for internal use by the district to identify district employees. A duplicate of the photograph 
used on the badge or card shall not be disclosed. 

The district shall not, in accordance with state law, disclose personal information for the purpose of 
enforcement of federal immigration laws. 

The district shall retain and maintain its public records in accordance with Oregon Administrative Rule 
(OAR) 166-005-0010 and Chapter 166, Division 400 and ORS Chapter 192. 

END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 180.805 
ORS Chapter 192 

OAR 137-004-0800(1) 
OAR 166-005-0010 

OAR 166-400

 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101-12213 (2018); 29 C.F.R. Part 1630 (2021); 28 C.F.R. Part 35 
(2021). 
OREGON DEP’T OF JUSTICE, OREGON ATTORNEY GENERAL, Public Records and Meetings Manual. 
Americans with Disabilities Act Amendments Act of 2008, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101-12133 (2018). 
Bialostosky v. Cummings, 319 Or. App. 352 (2022). 

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-180
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-192
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-137
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-166
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-166

	Agenda Public Policy Committee Mtg. 10.18.2022.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	Cover page
	BBBA G1
	CB G1
	CBC G1
	1. Reaches 65 years of age; or
	2. Finds new employment that provides health benefits.
	1. Purchase property or surplus property owned by the district or public charter school; or
	2. Use property owned by the district or public charter school in a manner other than the manner permitted for the general public.

	CPA G1
	DBEA G1
	1. The budget committee consists of seven members appointed by the Board plus the elected Board members of the district. To be eligible for appointment, the appointive member must:
	a. Live and be registered to vote in the district;
	b. Not be an officer, agent or employee of the district.

	2. At least one member of the budget committee must be a member of the district’s educational equity advisory committee.0F
	3. No budget committee member may receive any type of compensation from the district;
	4. At its first meeting in September, the Board will identify vacant budget committee positions which must be filled by appointment of the Board. The Board will announce the vacancies and receive applications from interested persons during the month o...
	5. At the first regular Board meeting in November, the Board will review the names of persons filing applications and names of those persons who have served previously and are willing to be reappointed. At the first regular meeting in December, the Bo...
	6. The appointive committee members of a budget committee in a district that prepares an annual budget will be appointed for three-year terms. The terms will be staggered so that, as near as practicable, one-third of the appointive members’ terms end ...
	7. If any appointive member is unable to complete the term for which the member was appointed, the Board will announce the vacancy at the first regular Board meeting following the committee member’s resignation or removal. An appointment to fill the p...
	1. At its first meeting after appointment, the budget committee will elect a presiding officer from among its members. It may also establish other ground rules as necessary for successful operation of the committee;
	2. A majority of the constituted committee is required for passing an action item. Majority for a 14-member budget committee is 8 Therefore, if only 8 members are present, a unanimous vote is needed for passing an action;
	3. The budget committee shall hold one or more meetings to receive the budget message, receive the budget document and to provide members of the public with an opportunity to ask questions about and comment on the budget document. The budget officer s...
	4. The budget committee may request any information used in the preparation of or for revising the budget document from the superintendent or business manager. The committee may request the attendance of any district employee at its meetings. The budg...
	5. After approval of the original or revised budget document, the budget committee’s duties cease. The hearing on the approved budget is held by the Board.

	EFA G1
	1. Delineating roles, responsibilities, actions and timelines specific to each school;
	2. Generating and disseminating information about who will be responsible to make what change, by how much, where and when;
	3. Establishing standards for all foods and beverages provided (but not sold) to students during the school day on participating school campuses;
	4. Establishing standards and nutrition guidelines for all foods and beverages sold to students during the school day on participating school campuses that meet state and federal nutrition standards for NSLP and SBP, competitive foods, permit marketin...
	5. Establishing specific goals for nutrition promotion and education, physical activity and other school-based activities that promote student wellness.
	1. The written local wellness policy;
	2. Documentation to demonstrate the policy has been made available to the public;
	3. Documentation of efforts to review and update the local wellness policy, including an indication of who participates in the update and the methods the district uses to make stakeholders aware of their ability to participate;
	4. Documentation to demonstrate compliance with the annual public notification requirements;
	5. Documentation of the district’s most recent assessment on the implementation of the local wellness policy;
	6. Documentation to demonstrate the most recent assessment on the implementation of the local wellness policy has been made available to the public.
	1. The extent to which schools under the jurisdiction of the district are in compliance with the policy;
	2. The extent to which the district’s policy compares to model local school wellness policy; and
	3. A description of the progress made in attaining the goals of the district’s policy.
	To ensure adequate nutrition promotion, the following goals will be implemented:
	The district’s available meal program(s) will operate to meet meal pattern requirements and dietary specifications in accordance with the Healthy, Hunger-Free Kids Act and applicable federal laws and regulations.
	1. Physical education courses will be the environment where students learn, practice and are assessed on developmentally appropriate knowledge, skills and confidence to become physically literate;
	2. Instruction, provided by adequately prepared teachers, i.e., licensed or endorsed to teach physical education, will meet the state adopted academic content standards for physical education (Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 329.045).
	3. Every public school student in kindergarten through grade 8 shall participate in physical education for the entire school year. Students in kindergarten through grade 5 shall participate for a least 150 minutes during each school week, and students...
	4. Physical activity will be integrated across curricula and throughout the school day. Movement will be made a part of all classes or courses as part of a well-rounded education;
	5. Physical activity during the school day (including, but not limited to, recess, classroom physical activity breaks or physical education) will not be used as a punishment or a reward;

	GBEA G1
	GCBDB_GDBDB G1
	IGAC G1
	IGAI G1
	1. Promotes abstinence for school-age youth and mutually monogamous relationships with an uninfected partner for adults;
	2. Allays those fears concerning HIV that are scientifically groundless;
	3. Is balanced and medically accurate;
	4. Provides balanced, accurate information and skills-based instruction on risks and benefits of contraceptives, condoms and other disease reduction measures;
	5. Discusses responsible sexual behaviors and hygienic practices which may reduce or eliminate unintended pregnancy, exposure to HIV, hepatitis B/C and other sexually transmitted infections and diseases;
	6. Stresses the risks of behaviors such as the sharing of needles or syringes for injecting illegal drugs and controlled substances;
	7. Discusses the characteristics of the emotional, physical and psychological aspects of a healthy relationship;
	8. Discusses the benefits of delaying pregnancy beyond the adolescent years as a means to better ensure a healthy future for parents and their children. The student shall be provided with statistics based on the latest medical information regarding bo...
	9. Stresses that HIV/STDs and hepatitis B/C can be possible hazards of sexual contact;
	10. Provides students with information about Oregon laws that address young people’s rights and responsibilities relating to childbearing and parenting;
	11. Advises students of consequences of having sexual relations with persons younger than 18 years of age to whom they are not married;
	12. Encourages family communication and involvement and helps students learn to make responsible, respectful and healthy decisions;
	13. Teaches that no form of sexual expression or behavior is acceptable when it physically or emotionally harms oneself or others and that it is wrong to take advantage of or exploit another person;
	14. Teaches that consent is an essential component of healthy sexual behavior. Course material shall promote positive attitudes and behaviors related to healthy relationships and sexuality, and encourage active student bystander behavior;
	15. Teaches students how to identify and respond to attitudes and behaviors which contribute to sexual violence;
	16. Validates the importance of one’s honesty, respect for each person’s dignity and well-being, and responsibility for one’s actions;
	17. Uses inclusive materials and strategies that recognizes different sexual orientations, gender identities and gender expression;
	18. Includes information about relevant community resources, how to access these resources, and the laws that protect the rights of minors to anonymously access these resources; and
	19. Is culturally inclusive.
	1. Assists students to develop and practice effective communication skills, development of self-esteem and ability to resist peer pressure;
	2. Provides students with the opportunity to learn about and personalize peer, media, technology and community influences that both positively and negatively impact their attitudes and decisions related to healthy sexuality, relationships and sexual b...
	3. Enhances students’ ability to access valid health information and resources related to their sexual health;
	4. Teaches how to develop and communicate sexual and reproductive boundaries;
	5. Is research based, evidence based or best practice; and
	6. Aligns with the Oregon Health Education Content Standards and Benchmarks.
	The district’s health and sexuality education will provide information on menstrual health and will be inclusive and affirming of transgender, non-binary, intersex, and two spirit/indigiqueer students; be positive and not fear- or shame-based; be age-...

	IGBAF G1
	IGBB G1
	IGBBA G1
	1. Use of evidence-based practices that include a variety of tools and procedures to determine if a student demonstrates a pattern of exceptional performance and/or achievement that is relevant to the identification of TAG students under ORS 343.395.
	2. Collection and use of multiple modes and methods of qualitative and quantitative evidence to allow appropriate members of a student’s identification team to make a determination about the identification and eligibility of the students for TAG servi...
	3. Use of methods and practices that minimize or seek to eliminate the effects of bias in assessment and identification of students from historically underrepresented populations including, but not limited to:
	a. Students who are racially/ethnically diverse;
	b. Students experiencing disability;
	c. Students who are culturally and/or linguistically diverse;
	d. Students experiencing poverty; and
	e. Students experiencing high mobility.

	4. Incorporate assessments, tools and procedures that will inform the development of an appropriate plan of instruction for students who are identified as TAG and describe how information from the assessments, tools and procedures used in the identifi...
	5. Identify how the educational record under ORS 326.565 of the student being considered will document and reflect the record of the team’s decision and the procedures and data used by the team to make the decision.

	IGBBC G1 Delete
	1. [Early Entrance;]
	2. [Grade Skipping;]
	3. [Ungraded/Multi-age Classes;]
	4. [Cluster Grouping in Regular Classes;]
	5. [Continuous Progress;]
	6. [Cross Grade Grouping;]
	7. [Compacted/Fast-Paced Curriculum;]
	8. [Special Full- or Part-Time Classes;]
	9. [Advanced Placement Classes;]
	10. [Honors Classes;]
	11. [Block Classes;]
	12. [Independent Study;]
	13. [Credit by Examination;]
	14. [Concurrent Enrollment;]
	15. [Mentorship/Internship;]
	16. [Academic Competitions;]
	17. [Magnet Programs/Schools.]

	IGBHE G1
	1. Is 16 years of age or older at the time of enrollment in a course under the EOP;
	2. Is in grade 11 or 12 at the time of enrollment in a course under the EOP or has not yet completed the required credits to be in grade 11 or 12, but the district has allowed the student to participate in the program;
	3. Has developed an educational learning plan;
	4. Has not successfully completed the requirements for a high school diploma. A student who has graduated from high school may not participate; and
	5. Is not an exchange student enrolled in a school under a cultural exchange program.
	1. Financial arrangements for tuition, textbooks, equipment and materials;
	2. Available transportation services;
	3. The effect of enrolling in the EOP on the student’s ability to complete high school graduation requirements;
	4. The consequences of failing or not completing a post-secondary course;
	5. Notification that participation in the EOP is contingent on acceptance by an eligible post-secondary institution; and
	6. District timelines affecting student eligibility and duplicate course determinations.
	1. The student’s short-term and long-term learning goals and proposed activities; and
	2. The relationship of the eligible post-secondary courses proposed under the EOP and the student’s learning goals.
	1. Allowance for the student to remain in the program during the pendency of any special education due process hearing unless the parent or guardian and district agree otherwise;
	2. Immediate notification to the district if the institution suspects that a student participating in the program may have a disability and requires special education or related services;
	3. Immediate notification to the district if the student engaged in conduct that may lead to suspension or expulsion; and
	4. Immediate notification to the district of any complaint made by the parent or guardian of the student regarding the student’s participation in the program at the institution.

	IGDJ G1
	1. Implements and adheres to equity focused policies that:
	a. Address the use of derogatory or inappropriate names, insults, verbal assaults, profanity, or ridicule that occurs at an interscholastic activity, including by spectators of the interscholastic activity;
	b. Prohibit discrimination;
	c. Permit a student to wear religious clothing in accordance with the student’s sincerely held religious belief and consistent with any safety and health requirements; and
	d. Balance the health, safety, and reasonable accommodation needs of participants on an activity-by-activity basis;

	2. Maintains a transparent complaint process that:
	a. Has a reporting system to allow participants of interscholastic activities or members of the public to make complaints about student, coach, or spectator behavior;
	b. Responds to a complaint made within 48 hours of the complaint being received; and
	c. Resolves a complaint within 30 days of the complaint being received unless the organization determines that there is good cause to extend the timeline for resolving the complaint;

	3. Develops and implements a system of sanctions against schools, students, coaches, and spectators if a complaint is verified; and
	4. Performs an annual survey of students and their parents to understand and respond to potential violations of equity focused policies or other discrimination.

	IK G1
	1. Parents and students may be informed of their student’s progress toward achieving the academic content standards, including but not limited to:
	a. Information on progress in each subject area to meet or exceed the academic content standards at the student’s current grade level or course content level, including major goals used to determine the information;
	b. Specific evidence of student progress toward mastery of a continuum of academic knowledge and skills (academic content standards) of a subject area, upon request from a parent;
	c. Student scores on all state and local assessments indicating any of the requirements that have been waived for the district or the individual and time periods for the waiver; and
	d. Student progress toward completion of diploma requirements to parents of students in grades 9-12, including credits earned, demonstration of extended application and demonstration of the Essential Skills.

	2. Parents will be alerted and conferred with as soon as possible when a student’s performance or attitude becomes unsatisfactory or shows marked or sudden deterioration;
	3. Grades and/or portfolio content assessment will be based upon academic performance and will not include student attitude. Grades will not be used for disciplinary purposes. Absenteeism or misconduct shall not be the sole criterion for the reduction...
	4. At comparable levels, the school system will strive for consistency in grading and reporting except when this consistency is inappropriate for certain classes or certain students;
	5. When no grades are given but the student is evaluated in terms of progress, the school staff will’’ show whether the student is achieving course requirements at the student’s current grade level;
	6. The staff will take particular care to explain to students the meaning of marks and symbols used to reflect student performance.

	IKF G1
	1. A foster child0F ;
	2. Homeless;
	3. A runaway;
	4. A child in a military family covered by the Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunity for Military Children;
	5. A child of a migrant worker; or
	6. Enrolled in the Youth Corrections Education Program or the Juvenile Detention Education Program.
	1. Three credits in mathematics (shall include one unit at the Algebra I level and two units that are at a level higher than Algebra I);
	2. Four credits in language arts (shall include the equivalent of one unit in written composition);
	3. Three credits in science;
	4. Three credits in social sciences (including history, geography and economics (including personal finance));
	5. One credit in health education;
	6. One credit in physical education; and
	7. Three credits in career and technical education, the arts or world languages2F  (units shall be earned in any one or a combination).
	1. Develop an education plan and build an education profile;
	2. Demonstrate extended application through a collection of evidence; and
	3. Participate in career-related learning experiences.
	Modified Diploma
	A modified diploma will be awarded only to students who have demonstrated the inability to meet the full set of academic standards adopted by the State Board of Education for a diploma while receiving reasonable modifications and accommodations. A mod...
	1. Has a documented history of an inability to maintain grade level achievement due to significant learning and instructional barriers; or
	2. Has a documented history of a medical condition that creates a barrier to achievement.
	1. Three credits in language arts;
	2. Two credits in mathematics;
	3. Two credits in science;
	4. Two credits in social sciences (which may include history, civics, geography and economics (including personal finance));
	5. One credit in health education;
	6. One credit in physical education; and
	7. One credit in career technical education, the arts or world languages (units may be earned in any one or a combination).
	1. Develop an education plan and build an education profile; and
	2. Demonstrate extended application through a collection of evidence.
	1. For a student on an individualized education program (IEP) or Section 504 plan, any modifications to work samples must be consistent with the requirements established in the IEP or 504 plan. Modifications include practices and procedures that compr...
	2. For a student not on an IEP or 504 plan, any modifications to work samples must have been provided to the student during their instruction in the content area to be assessed and in the year in which the student is being assessed, and modifications ...
	1. While in grade nine through completion of high school, complete 12 credits, which may not include more than six credits in a self-contained special education classroom and will include:
	a. Two credits in mathematics;
	b. Two credits in language arts;
	c. Two credits in science;
	d. Three credits in history, geography, economics or civics;
	e. One credit in health;
	f. One credit in physical education; and
	g. One credit in the arts or a world language.

	2. Have a documented history of:
	a. An inability to maintain grade level achievement due to significant learning and instructional barriers;
	b. A medical condition that creates a barrier to achievement; or
	c. A change in the student’s ability to participate in grade level activities as a result of a serious illness or injury that occurred after grade eight.


	IMB G1
	JEA G1
	1. Children being taught in a private or parochial school in courses of study usually taught in kindergarten through grade 12 in the public schools, and in attendance for a period equivalent to that required of students attending public schools.
	2. Children proving to the Board’s satisfaction that they have acquired equivalent knowledge to that acquired in the courses of study taught in kindergarten through grade 12 in the public schools.
	3. Children who have received a high school diploma or a modified diploma.
	4. Children being taught, by a private teacher, the courses of study usually taught in kindergarten through grade 12 in the public school for a period equivalent to that required of students attending public schools.
	5. Children being educated in the home by a parent, guardian or private teacher.
	6. Children whose sixth birthday occurred on or before September 1 immediately preceding the beginning of the current school year, if the parent or guardian notified the child’s resident district in writing that the parent or guardian is delaying the ...
	7. Children who are present in the United States on a nonimmigrant visa and who are attending a private, accredited English language learner program in preparation for attending a private high school or college.
	8. Children excluded from attendance as provided by law.
	9. Children who are eligible military children0F  are exempt up to 10 days after the date of military transfer or pending transfer indicated in the official military order.
	10. An exemption may be granted to the parent or guardian of any child 16 or 17 years of age who is lawfully employed full-time, or who is lawfully employed part-time and enrolled in school, a community college or an alternative education program as d...
	11. An exemption may be granted to any child who is an emancipated minor or who has initiated the procedure for emancipation under ORS 419B.550 - 419B.558.

	JGAB G1
	1. Chemical restraint.
	2. Mechanical restraint.
	3. Prone restraint.
	4. Supine restraint.
	5. Any restraint that involves the intentional and nonincidental use of a solid object0F , including a wall or the floor, to impede a student’s movement, unless the restraint is necessary to prevent an imminent life-threatening injury or to gain contr...
	6. Any restraint that places, or creates a risk of placing, pressure on a student’s mouth, neck or throat.
	7. Any restraint that places, or creates a risk of placing, pressure on a student’s mouth, unless the restraint is necessary for the purpose of extracting a body part from a bite.
	8. Any restraint that impedes, or creates a risk of impeding, breathing.
	9. Any restraint that involves the intentional placement of the hands, feet, elbow, knee or any object on a student’s neck, throat, genitals or other intimate parts.
	10. Any restraint that causes pressure to be placed, or creates a risk of causing pressure to be placed, on the stomach or back by a knee, foot or elbow bone.
	11. Any action designed for the primary purpose of inflicting pain.
	1. The student’s behavior imposes a reasonable risk of imminent and substantial physical or bodily injury to the student or others; and
	2. Less restrictive interventions would not be effective.
	Seclusion may be used on a student in the district only under the following circumstances:
	1. The student’s behavior imposes a reasonable risk of imminent and serious bodily injury to the student or others; and
	2. Less restrictive interventions would not be effective.
	Definitions
	1. “Restraint” means the restriction of a student’s actions or movements by holding the student or using pressure or other means.
	a. Holding a student’s hand or arm to escort the student safely and without the use of force from one area to another;
	b. Assisting a student to complete a task if the student does not resist the physical contact; or
	c. Providing reasonable intervention with the minimal exertion of force necessary if the intervention does not include a restraint prohibited under Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 339.288 and the intervention is necessary to:
	(1) Break up a physical fight;
	(2) Interrupt a student’s impulsive behavior that threatens the student’s immediate safety, including running in front of a vehicle or climbing on unsafe structures or objects; or
	(3) Effectively protect oneself or another from an assault, injury or sexual contact with the minimum physical contact necessary for protection.


	2. “Seclusion” means the involuntary confinement of a student alone in a room from which the student is physically prevented from leaving. Seclusion includes, but is not limited to, the involuntary confinement of a student alone in a room with a close...
	3. “Seclusion cell” means a freestanding, self-contained unit that is used to isolate the student from other students or physically prevent a student from leaving the unit or cause the student to believe that the student is physically prevented from l...
	4. “Serious bodily injury” means any significant impairment of the physical condition of a person, as determined by qualified medical personnel, whether self-inflicted or inflicted by someone else.
	5. “Substantial physical or bodily injury” means any impairment of the physical condition of a person that requires some form of medical treatment.
	6. “Mechanical restraint” means a device used to restrict the movement of a student or the movement or normal function of a portion of the body of a student.
	a. A protective or stabilizing device ordered by a licensed physician; or
	b. A vehicle safety restraint when used as intended during the transport of a student in a moving vehicle.

	7. “Chemical restraint” means a drug or medication that is used on a student to control behavior or restrict freedom of movement that is not prescribed by a licensed physician or other qualified health professional acting under the professional’s scop...
	8. “Prone restraint” means a restraint in which a student is held face down on the floor.
	9. “Supine restraint” means a restraint in which a student is held face up on the floor.
	1. The total number of incidents involving restraint;
	2. The total number of incidents involving seclusion;
	3. The total number of seclusions in a locked room;
	4. The total number of students placed in restraint;
	5. The total number of students placed in seclusion;
	6. The total number of incidents that resulted in injuries or death to students or staff as a result of the use of restraint or seclusion;
	7. The total number of students placed in restraint or seclusion more than 10 times in a school year and an explanation of what steps have been taken by the district to decrease the use of restraint and seclusion for each student;
	8. The total number of restraint or seclusion incidents carried out by untrained individuals;
	9. The demographic characteristics1F  of all students upon whom restraint or seclusion was imposed;
	10. The total number of rooms available for use by the district for seclusion of a student and a description of the dimensions and design of the rooms.

	JHC G1
	1. One registered nurse or school nurse for every 125 medically fragile students;
	2. One registered nurse or school nurse or one licensed practical nurse under the supervision of a registered nurse or school nurse for each nursing-dependent student; and
	3. One registered nurse or school nurse for every 225 medically complex students.
	1. Pertinent health information on the students, as required by Oregon statutes or rules;
	2. Health appraisal to include screening for possible vision or hearing problems;
	3. Health counseling for students and parents, when appropriate;
	4. Health care and first-aid assistance that are appropriately supervised and isolate the sick or injured child from the student body;
	5. Control and prevention of communicable diseases as required by Oregon Health Authority, Public Health Division, and the county health department;
	6. Assistance for students in taking prescription and/or nonprescription medication according to established district procedures;
	7. Services for students who are medically fragile or have special health care needs;
	8. Integration of school health services with school health education programs.

	KBA G1
	A “public record” includes any writing that contains information relating to the conduct of the public’s business, prepared, owned, used or retained by the district regardless of physical form or characteristics, unless otherwise exempted by law.0F  “...



